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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012

(Time Noted – 7:05 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but the Board may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. And I would ask if you have a cell phone to please put it on silent or turn the cell phone off so that we won’t be interrupted. And when speaking, please speak directly into the microphone because it is being recorded. And I'd also like to mention that the Members of the Board have visited all of the sites that we will be discussing this evening. Roll call please. 

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



MICHAEL MAHER



JAMES MANLEY

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



JOSEPH MATTINA, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 7:06 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 7:07 PM) 



STEPHEN D’ALATRI


186 MILL STREET, WALLKILL







(4-2-39.33) R / R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for storage of more than (4) four vehicles and for the allowed maximum square footage of accessory buildings to build an accessory building (detached garage).   

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Stephen D’Alatri.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, August 14th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, August 15th. This applicant sent out fifteen registered letters, thirteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: If you would state your name for the record and then your request. 

Mr. D’Alatri: Stephen D’Alatri, what I want to do is take down my one-car garage that I have presently on my property and put up a three-car garage. There’s four people living in my house and a…I need a place to store the vehicles and the present garage that I have up is a little bit of an eye-sore and I would like to put up something new and a more modern.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you state that it is a three-car garage?

Mr. D’Alatri: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: The garage that is there presently is going to be taken down.  

Mr. D’Alatri: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have additional garages in the house?

Mr. D’Alatri: No.

Chairperson Cardone: Joe, could you comment on that?

Mr. Mattina: On what?

Chairperson Cardone: On the number of cars, could you comment on that?

Mr. Mattina: Basically like the conversation we had last time square footage it’s you know, dictated on the possibility of storage of vehicles so a parking space 9 x 18 is 162 sq. ft. divided by the total floor area and that gives us roughly 7.66…storage of 7.66 vehicles.  

Ms. Drake: The number of garage doors you’re proposing is three?

Mr. D’Alatri: That’s correct.

Ms. Drake: Are they single wide or double wide doors?

Mr. D’Alatri: A…they’re 9’ x 8’, I guess they would be singles. I have a picture of what I plan to put up from the company that’s…its more or less a pole barn garage and they have a picture of a what I propose to do also with the plans for a…

Mr. McKelvey: Do you have the picture with you?

Mr. D’Alatri: Yes, I do.

Ms. Drake: Is it the same thing we have here? 

Mr. D’Alatri: Yeah, I mean that’s just like a blueprint, I have a…I do have a color picture if you would like that.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.   

Mr. D’Alatri: If you don’t mind I’m just going to approach the bench up there.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. D’Alatri: The colors aren’t the same but that’s basically what I would do.

Ms. Gennarelli: All right, if you are going to talk you have to bring the microphone with you Stephen.

Ms. Drake: And you are going to have a garage door on the back side also?

Mr. D’Alatri: Yes, because I plan to use that instead of having a shed, that’s where my a…tractor, lawnmower stuff, garden tools are going to go so I, you know, instead of having a shed in the yard also I’d rather just have everything in one spot. 

Mr. McKelvey: That’s where the four-door garage comes in then?

Mr. Mattina: Well basically when I do the plan review Code-wise doors don’t mean a thing. 

Mr. McKelvey: Okay.

Mr. Mattina: It’s the storage of…if I have one door and I can still get ten cars in there it still has ten cars with one door.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, yeah now I understand.

Mr. Mattina: Doors mean nothing, to me. 

Ms. Drake: Out of curiosity when you drive in the driveway obviously the doors will be on that side, will the drive…the one with the door in the front and the back be the one right in front of the driveway or will that be at the other end?

Mr. D’Alatri: That would be on the immediate left of the proposed garage and then a I guess that would be…I would park a car in the front and have the rest of it behind, you know, in front of the car would be storage for the lawnmower and stuff like that. That’s why I made it thirty deep.

Chairperson Cardone: You are saying on the left as you face the house?

Mr. D’Alatri: That’s correct.  

Chairperson Cardone: So that would be closest to the house.

Mr. D’Alatri: When you pull in my driveway it’s…it’s going to be the far most left door and then you would have two other doors then it would, you know, so everybody can park inside the garage and not be parked all over my house the way it looks right now.    

Chairperson Cardone: Okay do we have any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 
Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes






(Time Noted – 7:13 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012      (Resumption for decision: 9:43 PM) 



STEPHEN D’ALATRI


186 MILL STREET, WALLKILL







(4-2-39.33) R / R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for storage of more than (4) four vehicles and for the allowed maximum square footage of accessory buildings to build an accessory building (detached garage).   

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the first application of Stephen D’Alatri at 186 Mill Street, Wallkill, seeking area variances for storage of more than (4) four vehicles and for the allowed maximum square footage of accessory buildings to build an accessory building (detached garage). This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. And I’d also like to put in the record the report from the Orange County Planning Department is Local Determination. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: The fact that he is doing three car, three a…garage doors and I know Joe calculated to be what the max you could fit in there it appears that he is using it for three cars.   

Chairperson Cardone: And the current garage is being removed. 

Ms. Drake: Correct. 
Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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JAMES MANLEY
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DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY
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(Time Noted – 9:45 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 7:13 PM) 



LOUIS CORDA 



3 STIRRUP DRIVE, NBGH







(57-5-10) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity (side yard setback) to keep a prior built rear deck on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Louis Corda.               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twenty-eight registered letters, twenty-eight were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Just for the record state your name and then your request.

Mr. Corda: Right, my name is Louis Corda.

Chairperson Cardone: And state your request.

Mr. Corda: Right, I’m here to request a variance for a pre-existing deck that was built...that I personally built about twenty-five years ago.

Mr. Maher: I’m assuming you went for a C.O. for the house and that created a problem?

Mr. Corda: A…the house was built in 1965…

Mr. Maher: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Mike, when you talk can you pull that in please? 

Mr. Corda: The house was built by Schoonmaker in 1965. I purchased in 1967. I was the second owner. The a…when I built the deck a…about a seven or eight, about eight years after I moved in I put an addition on the house and then there was a…an area that perfect to put a deck to kind of fill in that other, that other gap if you will. And the mistake that I made is that I took advice from people that didn’t know and the times were a little more rustic then anyway but a…the house is eleven feet from the property line, the deck is twelve feet from the property line so my thinking was that hey the deck is further away from the property line than the house is so, I mean, who is going to complain about that and that kind of was my attitude at the time, which has significantly changed since however. I would like the variance if there’s…it cannot be seen, there are four pictures that I know I submitted from all the angles of the house and that really the neighbors can’t really can’t even see it and a…when I discussed this with my neighbors it was, you know, almost a non-issue as far as they were concerned so.

Mr. McKelvey: You didn’t have a Permit when you built it?

Mr. Corda: No, that’s my next step.

Mr. Hughes: Did you have a Permit when you built the addition?

Mr. Corda: Yeah. 

Mr. Hughes: That checked out, it was just the deck?

Mr. Corda: Yeah, yeah I had…that was built by somebody else and they got all that but the deck I personally physically did along with my children.

Ms. Drake: Joe, are things visible for you to be able to do an inspection of the deck of the footings and so forth?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, when we issue…when we get the variance we will issue the Permit, we’ll have him expose the footings that we get under, that it’s high enough. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? 
Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.


(Time Noted -7:16 PM)


----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012    (Resumption for decision: 9:45PM) 



LOUIS CORDA 



3 STIRRUP DRIVE, NBGH







(57-5-10) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity (side yard setback) to keep a prior built rear deck on the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application Louis Corda at 3 Stirrup Drive seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity (side yard setback) to keep a prior built rear deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Maher: Obviously it’s been there for…for twenty-five or so years, doesn’t protrude out past the current side of the house. I’d a…I make a motion to approve it.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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(Time Noted – 9:46 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 7:16 PM) 



NELLA’S NEST NORTH CORP.  

1430 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(60-3-24) I / B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an Interpretation and/or Use variance for Bulk Table – Schedule 8 – storage buildings are not permitted with a D5 and any use not specifically permitted shall be deemed to be prohibited to keep a Prior Built (20 x 40) storage building.   

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Nella’s Nest North Corp. 

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twelve registered letters for both…for each…for the use variance and for the area variance and eleven were returned for the use variance and eleven were returned for the area variance. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: The first item that we’re looking at is the use variance, Interpretation and/or Use variance.

Mr. Roberts: The use variance would be the sign. 

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Ms. Gennarelli: That’s the area variance.

Chairperson Cardone: Relating to a storage building, an existing cargo container.   

Mr. Roberts: Thank you. First I’d like to thank the Board for their volunteer service. I know it’s a thankless job and I want to thank Betty, I…she’s been putting up with me the last couple of months running in the door at 4:00 just before the deadlines and stuff.  And a…the use variance is a cargo container that I had a…put there in about 2006 a…it was at the time a temporary solution and it still is. A…and a 2006, 7 I had planned on putting a a or had dreamed of putting in a pole barn or something like that, you know, and a more permanent solution to our storage issues. The economy fell apart and at the end of ’07, 2008 and business has been down, I don’t know, thirty percent every year a…so I have no other needs or I’m not able to store my windows or any other of my material off-site or build a, you know, a permanent solution at this point. 

Mr. McKelvey: I just want to say you’ve done work for me.

Mr. Roberts: I thought you looked familiar.

Mr. McKelvey: Is it alright if I…?

Mr. Donovan: You…you, if you feel you can be a part, there’s not a per se conflict…

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Mr. Donovan: …if he’s not doing work for you at the present time.   

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Mr. Donovan: In other words, he’s not a giving you free work for you to rule on this.

Mr. McKelvey: No, absolutely not.

Mr. Donovan: If that’s not the case and you feel comfortable that you can be impartial…

Mr. McKelvey: I feel comfortable, yes.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, okay, then you don’t have a problem.

Ms. Drake: I’ll state for the record he’s done work for my house also but I don’t feel that I…he is not currently doing any work and I don’t feel…I would be impartial.     

Mr. Donovan: Well now…

Chairperson Cardone: And I see behind the a…that storage thing you also have some kind of an overhang and…

Mr. Roberts: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: …materials behind that and some kind of a floor also there?

Mr. Roberts: The floors are just a…pallets that we put down there to keep some of the material dry when it heavy rains.

Mr. Donovan: Joe, what is the use of the…what’s the principal use of this property now?

Mr. Mattina: It’s an office.  

Mr. Donovan: Office. And is there a Violation on the…on the property?

Mr. Mattina: The Violations are the accessory buildings, the signage which we’ll deal with later.

Mr. Donovan: But relative to this structure is there…is there a Code Violation for that? I’m trying to figure out what he’s trying to get at, a variance. I know he’s asking for a use variance…

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Donovan: …and I, I guess my question is this, he’s got an office if I understand correctly, he says he’s storing stuff from his office. So why, why is this not an accessory structure…?

Mr. Mattina: Well Bulk Table – Schedule 8, Column A, storage buildings is not an accessible use with a D-5. It’s permitted with a C-1, D-7, D-11, D-13 but accessory buildings are not permitted with offices, Schedule 8…

Mr. Donovan: I’m looking at it. Thank you.

Mr. Mattina: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: I have a couple of questions; maybe it will clarify some of this stuff that’s going on on this property in its entirety. If you could tell me, how many entities operate out of that property?    

Mr. Roberts: A…myself, I own a roofing, window, siding business and there is a clothing store underneath.

Mr. Hughes: And what about the people that live in the building?

Mr. Roberts: There is none.

Mr. Hughes: You have three mailboxes that get delivery. What is the third entity?  

Mr. Roberts: A…the third mailbox is one we never took down from the previous owners.

Mr. Hughes: Okay.

Mr. Roberts: There’s actually only two.

Mr. Hughes: So if I may try to a…unless you want to take the position and tell us, isn’t the residue of what’s stored in these barns from you’re contracting business…

Mr. Roberts: That is…

Mr. Hughes: …and not office supplies? I just want to make it clear.

Mr. Roberts: It is a…it is a…a…material, windows a…you know, compressor and stuff like that a, you know, there may be an office for my business but it’s not an office per se. I mean we’re a full service construction company.

Mr. Hughes: I…it was very had to keep up with this, I’ve been out there a…ten times in as many days and it seems like there’s a rotating circus, if you will, about vehicles here, signs there, banners here. It’s never the same for a month at a time and I don’t know if the rest of the people have been out there that often, I happen to go by there quite a bit. Are we going to bring it down to a dull roar at some point? It seems like there is just so much going on on this property.

Mr. Roberts: A, you know, we do have the banners up there, that is a…for the business down below more or less to attract a...you know, customers for them.

Mr. Hughes: And what is that business?


Mr. Roberts: It’s a clothing store. It’s actually a…my wife has opened it up. A…we’re going through the process of getting a divorce. I’m trying to help her out. She’s hidden underneath. No, help her out not throw her out. A…that may be decided by someone other than me but a…for now she stays and a…you know, business is slow there it’s, you know, she’s hidden underneath. It’s her only source of income so that’s…with signs and stuff, you know, the banners. She’s having a sidewalk sale this weekend so…

Mr. Hughes: So would it be safe to speculate that there’s a lot of activity on that one property and when I look at this and the signs and the banners and all the other stuff I wondering if the parking and traffic control and that stuff has been addressed too. You’re operating two entities something that small…

Mr. Roberts: We do have a a entrance off of 52.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, we’ve been out to the property, there’s a driveway goes around in the back but I was more focused on the safety. There’s children in and out of there I see. I don’t know if they’re yours…

Mr. Roberts: That’s my daughter. 

Mr. Hughes: The parking doesn’t seem to be right, the traffic control and with painting lines and arrows and the motion doesn’t seem to be right so I was really a little bit antsy about addressing just this in a segment without covering the whole thing. I don’t know if Code Compliance has anything.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Are they in Violation with anything else?

Mr. Mattina: Not with the site. As far back as the records go to the early ‘70’s there has always been an office upstairs and a retail downstairs so they haven’t altered the site plan or what they’ve been using a site plan in the last thirty years. It’s just these extras that keep popping up.  

Mr. Hughes: I see. And then part of that is propelled or protracted if you will, if you had other parking spaces around the building where you’re parking trucks now maybe there’s a better way you can make a general outline on the property and clean it up so it’s safe. 

Mr. Roberts: Is that…you…I…I don’t feel the property is unsafe a…a…you know a…the plan is obviously to have as many vehicles in the back as possible, you know, of the building. You know, the larger trucks and stuff and it…and, you know to be honest with you, the trucks are a good source of advertising. You know, we do have box trucks that have our names on it.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. 

Mr. Roberts: So, a…

Mr. Hughes: Well you see we got to that point where there was the trucks with the signs on it and the extra signs that weren’t there before and then the truck on each side and you’re going by there we have photos, it’s unbelievable sometimes.   

Chairperson Cardone: We’ll a…excuse me, we will get to the…the signs but right now I want to address the use variance.

Mr. Hughes: Okay.

Chairperson Cardone: And I just want to remind the Board that there are five (four) criteria to grant a use variance and all five (four) must be met so...

Mr. Hughes: Alright I have some questions even before it gets to that though and I’ll refer to Counsel on this one. Can we segment on a property a use for such a storage trailer?

Mr. Donovan: Segment from what?

Mr. Hughes: Well from the entire property. If he’s looking for a use variance just for that storage unit or is he looking for a use variance to change the conditions he can use this facility? 

Mr. Donovan: Well, I…

Mr. Hughes: Is it just for the storage unit?

Mr. Donovan: Well, I think that we have two applications and this application that we’re reviewing presently is for a use variance or alternatively an interpretation, actually I think it should be reverse, a…but it’s a use variance to allow, as I understand it, well a use variance to allow the container to be used as storage?

Mr. Roberts: That’s correct.

Mr. Donovan: Or an interpretation that at the truck loading facility?

Mr. Roberts: Well we do a…

Mr. Donovan: Just reading from your application.

Mr. Roberts: …it…it’s more or less for storage.

Mr. Donovan: Okay…

Chairperson Cardone: Joe, correct me if I’m wrong…

Mr. Hughes: (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: …it would be any type of storage. 

Mr. Mattina: Correct, our…our focus is the building itself which would be the eight foot container and the twelve foot overhang cantilever. For us that’s storage as a building period, as one lump storage building.

Mr. Hughes: Okay, so then you’re going to address this as a building, per se at this point.

Mr. Mattina: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: Okay. And Counsel, we can do that? We can say that that’s a building and rule on a use variance for such a thing?

Mr. Donovan: We can say…what’s a building?

Mr. Hughes: That the storage container…?

Mr. Donovan: Well that was another question that I had for Joe. Since it…I’m reading the definition of structure in the Code, does…does this a…unit qualify as a structure?

Mr. Mattina: Well I think that was part of the interpretation, are cargo containers considered accessory structures?  Wasn’t it written up that way? I think we’ve had this discussion before, cargo containers…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Mattina: …are they commercial vehicles or are they accessory buildings? But in this case, to me, the Bulk Table is a storage building period so it really doesn’t define whether it’s a cargo container or a stick built structure or a concrete structure, a storage building period. 

Mr. Hughes: Well what I had my eye on here is if we haven’t ruled on one of these storage containers before and I don’t believe it to be a building it doesn’t have footings and doesn’t have windows and doors, and like that. I think we’re going…

Chairperson Cardone: But it is a storage container and it does have an overhang that’s built on to it.

Mr. Mattina: Correct. The second variance request 185-7-F, unspecified use of cargo container as a storage building so we’re asking is it?

Mr. Hughes: Permissible?

Mr. Mattina: Correct. It’s not specified in the Code. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I didn’t see anything anywhere.

Mr. Maher: What’s the difference between dropping a storage container in a backyard and a…or a…on the property and a pre-built shed? The same function, there the same…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Maher: …function in the end is storage (inaudible).

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: And hopefully the shed isn’t as ugly as the storage container.

Mr. Maher: Well regardless of that, I mean, it still serves the same purpose.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Maher: I mean, other than gravel or earth under there there’s no foundation generally for dropping a shed either. Correct?

Mr. Roberts: No.

Mr. Maher: Now are there…are there footings on the actual overhang?

Mr. Roberts: No. 

Mr. Maher: So they’re just…

Mr. Roberts: It’s a temporary…it’s a temporary structure, it’s not a a permanent solution to my needs but it is one that is needed at the time. There…there’s no electric, no heat and if I was a strip mall three buildings down, under the Code, it would be legal but because I’m a free standing building alone it’s not legal.

Mr. Maher: Didn’t we have one recently…? That was a request …didn’t the Boy Scouts request a…a storage shed?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, they did. They were denied.

Mr. Maher: And that was on…on Jeannie Drive, right?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, that’s correct. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, right up the road. Counsel, can you maybe describe for the sake of the public and the applicant how difficult that use variance is to get and read those reg’s that go with it please?

Mr. Donovan: Well…

Chairperson Cardone: Do you want me to read the four criteria? 

Mr. Donovan: You have them in front of you.

Chairperson Cardone: I have them right in front of me. One, cannot realize a reasonable return substantial as shown by competent financial evidence. Two, alleged hardship is unique and does not apply to a substantial proportion of neighborhood or district. Three, requested variance will not alter essential character of the neighborhood. And four, the alleged hardship has not been self-created. And all four have to be met.

Mr. Hughes: And that hardship is a tough one because…

Chairperson Cardone: Because it is self-created. 

Mr. Hughes: …it…it is self, yeah.

Mr. Manley: Is there a possibility that a…there would be another location that you could utilize for equipment storage versus office location, have, you know, multiple location to kind of… 

Mr. Roberts: If you’re saying rent another building somewhere else, I mean that’s going to create an even further hardship and I, you know, and I do believe I meet all those criteria’s regarding hardship. I don’t see that a…a national recession, a global recession that has a…you know, that we’re still in, is a self-created hardship. 

Mr. Hughes: But that’s not really what it’s looking for.

Mr. Donovan: The nature of a self-created hardship is did you know, or should you have known that you can’t have storage space on that…on that property because storage is not allowed as accessory to an office? And if you knew or should have known then the hardship is self-created. We typically deal with area variances where a self-created hardship is not a bar to relief just a fact to be considered. In the area of use variances, a self-created hardship is an absolute bar. If the hardship is self-created you may not grant the use variance.

Mr. Roberts: I was a…shown plans by the previous owner before I bought it that a…years ago and a…probably about seven or eight before I bought it in ’07 that he had a approval to put a small strip mall back there. You know, of course it have to be the demo of the building we’re in and the building a strip mall running, you know, running parallel with Verizon so a…I did not know that when I purchased the building that you could not have a…a…storage.

Mr. Hughes: So is there something other than the storage container that you could put on the property, Counsel and Building Department that is fit to suit in that area? In other words if he removed the storage shed and put a real shed out there? He still can’t do that?

Mr. Mattina: Right, Bulk Table 8 doesn’t allow storage buildings. 

Mr. Hughes: Suppose he put an extension on the back of his building? It would serve the same purpose.

Mr. Mattina: Then the Planning Board would address the issues. 

Mr. Hughes: Well so there’s…there’s one option you can take because I don’t see your use variance going through, by the State Law. 

Mr. Roberts: Well, that’s you know…

Mr. Hughes: It’s tough to meet those criteria for a use they’re almost impossible to get so, you know, I’m not telling you what to do but I’m looking for a way where you can get a compromise and still where you are without a lot of expense. 

Mr. Roberts: Well to put an addition on the back of the building would create a…a…you know, I am looking for a way to satisfy the Town and to…to…to stay in business a…and again, you know, I…I, you know I don’t know what the options are that’s, you know, cost efficient at the time a…you know, it’s a, you know, cargo container that’s already bought and paid for and a…you know it’s…it could be moved further back if the Board sees fit so it’s out of the way more. I mean it is…you really have to pull up the property, you can’t see it from Verizon; you can’t see it from driving down 300 unless you come to a stop and look. You know, it’s…it’s… 

Mr. Hughes: Well, we don’t get into those kind of far reaching details but we’re looking for a way where you can meet this and live to tell about it so to speak, you know.  

Mr. Roberts: Thank you for that.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a report from the Orange County Department of Planning, which is Local Determination. They also additionally said, if the Board may wish to consider a…in the event that this would be approved mitigation measures should be considered to visually screen the storage container as a part of any approval, this may consist of decorative fencing, with landscaping, in accordance with the Zoning Law and potential approval by the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: And so with that…?

Chairperson Cardone: Well they’re saying if…if it were approved.

Mr. Hughes: About the mitigation part of it, if you were willing to move it back and dress it up where it would disappear then maybe you would have a shot at…

Mr. Roberts: I would a…I would definitely do anything the Board wishes me to do.      

Mr. Hughes: Counsel.

Chairperson Cardone: That…that would not…

Mr. Hughes: That doesn’t relieve him from the hardship? No…I…

Chairperson Cardone: No it does not.

Mr. Donovan: If you make a determination that it is self-created you can’t grant the use variance. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I…about the interpretation now, Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Well that’s the applicant’s request he should make his argument and you should listen to it. 

Mr. Roberts: Regarding the…being a storage container? I’m not quite clear on where you’re going.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t have the answer for you. I don’t know.

Mr. Donovan: Well I’m just reading from the application, it says your request is for a use variance or…or alternatively an interpretation of the Ordinance and in number two; I’ll read what you have written. I would like it interpreted that the cargo container I have used on my property for approximately seven years is a truck loading facility. I use the container solely to hold materials which are loaded and unloaded into my trucks.

Mr. Roberts: That is correct.

Mr. Hughes: Joe, has that thing been there that long?

Mr. Mattina: I never noticed it until a complaint was filed.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I never did either. You say it’s been there seven years? 

Mr. Roberts: Since a…probably ’06. That might not be a full seven years but part…a good part of it. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any comments from the public? Do we have anything else from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: I…I got a question. I just have a question. Joe, if it was listed, the building was listed as retail versus an office would that allow the storage shed?

Mr. Donovan: I think Brenda that’s D-2. I think storage is only allowed with C-1, D-7, 11, 13.

Mr. Mattina: Correct. No it would not. D-7 is a research laboratory, D-11 is a motor vehicle service station and D-13 is a business park. That’s the only permitted uses for a storage building.

Ms. Drake: Okay.

Chairperson Cardone: In other words no type of structure would be allowed for…?

Mr. Donovan: For storage.

Chairperson Cardone: …for storage.

Mr. Mattina: For storage, correct, no storage structures are allowed.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. Right.

Mr. Maher: But just to go back to Ron’s suggestion there, if there was a…if there was a roof structure on the rear of the building, a small addition, covered porch, whatever you want to call it, that would be acceptable? Because it’s part of the main building?

Mr. Mattina: Once again, that would be up to the Planning Board because they would have to have a site plan and they would dictate what it is to be used for and what it should be categorized as.

Mr. Hughes: You still own that bulk of all that property that you’ve described?

Mr. Roberts: That’s correct. 

Mr. Hughes: (Inaudible) business part…well I…what my colleague just suggested might…that’s what I was trying to get across, maybe I didn’t use the right words but it’s either that or you have to go to Town Board to ask them to redistrict that whole thing along in there or I don’t see a shot for you any other way. You know, you’ve got nothing, you have a neighbor there that’s a regular house that’s been converted into a business as well and they have a…a used clothing store, baby equipment and that kind of stuff so neither one of them were in a district that included residential at that time or…or it’s been converted to something else since they were built. There may…because other than those two dwellings I don’t think there’s anything else but commercial use from one corner to the next.

Mr. Roberts: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: So maybe you shot isn’t here but to go to the Town Board to see if they’ll entertain a redistricting of that whole area. That’s a commercial…

Chairperson Cardone: Of the whole area when it’s commercial? 

Mr. Hughes: Well no…

Chairperson Cardone: As an IB he couldn’t a…he couldn’t have any type of storage. What are you suggesting?

Mr. Donovan: I think he is suggesting that they allow storage in the IB.

Chairperson Cardone: Oh.

Mr. Hughes: Well, no I’m not saying that either. No, no.

Mr. Donovan: And that’s not the application that’s before us. Alright?

Mr. Hughes: No, I’m not looking for that.

Chairperson Cardone: Well that might be something to look for rather than looking at...I mean there’s no way to change this to an R-3 or an R-2…

Mr. Hughes: Oh, no.

Chairperson Cardone: …or something of that type.

Mr. Hughes: I’m not suggesting that at all. I was going the other way to make it more into a commercial thing because these are just two houses that were converted into a commercial installation. They were residential houses at one time. They’ve been commercial for a long time at this point. I don’t have the answer for you. I’m just trying to make suggestions.

Mr. Roberts: I appreciate your kindness. 

Mr. Hughes: But back what Mr. Maher said, if you were allowed by the Planning Board to extend that building and incorporate a garage there with an extension of that building then you could get rid of the storage container. I don’t know what to tell you…

Ms. Gennarelli: Ron, could you get a little closer to the microphone?

Mr. Hughes: I’m sorry. Did you get all of that Betty?

Ms. Gennarelli: Barely.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, that’s a tough spot. It’s…I don’t see a way where we can offer you more suggestions than what we’ve done already. Everything else is in compliance there Joe? There’s no Violations on the building or anything?

Mr. Mattina: No, not on the building, no.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else. Thank you for answering.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Hearing? 

Mr. Maher: I’ll make a motion to close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.






(Time Noted – 7:41 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012    (Resumption for decision: 9:46 PM) 



NELLA’S NEST NORTH CORP.  

1430 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(60-3-24) I / B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an Interpretation and/or Use variances for Bulk Table – Schedule 8 – storage buildings are not permitted with a D5 and any use not specifically permitted shall be deemed to be prohibited to keep a Prior Built (20 x 40) storage building.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Nella’s Nest North Corp., 1430 Route 300, Interpretation and/or Use variance for Bulk Table – Schedule 8 – storage buildings are not permitted with a D5 and any use not specifically permitted shall be deemed to be prohibited to keep a Prior Built (20 x 40) storage building.   

Ms. Drake: Based on the need for use variances and the criteria for hardship I don’t feel this application has met the criteria for hardship for the storage. I make a motion to deny the application.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second on the denial of this application?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for denial is carried.
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(Time Noted – 9:47 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 7:41 PM) 



NELLA’S NEST NORTH CORP. 

1430 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(60-3-24) I / B ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the maximum allowed total signage, no structure shall be located within 80 feet of the center line of Union Avenue and signs shall not be located closer than 15 feet from the center line to keep a Prior Built free-standing sign.   

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Nella’s Nest North Corporation seeking an area variance related to the square footage of the signage.                

(From Use variance minutes) Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twelve registered letters for both…for each…for the use variance and for the area variance and eleven were returned for the use variance and eleven were returned for the area variance. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Roberts: Thank you once again. I believe the main issue is the free-standing sign a…that a…my a…has two signs on it, one is Roberts’ Contracting, the other one is Nella Bella’s Boutique and right now it sits forty-four feet from the center of Route 300. A…I believe the Code is 80-feet, as it stands now a…that sign again was there when I bought the building. A…I talked to the previous owner Mark Mazza. He said that his dad put that sign up in the early ‘80’s when Route 300 was a a two-lane highway going up that hill instead of a two-lane plus the turning lane. A…I don’t believe…obviously that met Code back then it should still be grandfathered in a…the second thing, the 80-foot rule make make sense up further by Home Depot and Friday’s where there’s a five lanes but a where I’m at now I would have to move my sign in the middle of my building to accommodate the…the 80-feet rule.

Mr. McKelvey: That truck you got on the…on…advertising the clothing store that’s a sign too.

Mr. Roberts: That is true and that sign, that truck is registered, it’s insured, it’s mobile.

Mr. McKelvey: It is still a sign. 

Mr. Roberts: I have signs on all my trucks a…you know, whether it’s lettering…

Mr. McKelvey: You’re advertising a business.

Mr. Roberts: That is correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Any time I’ve gone past and I go past quite often I’ve seen that truck there so it’s more or less permanent.

Mr. Roberts: I wouldn’t say that. It’s been moved since I put the signs up as we needed to…as it…roofing business will pick up and it will a get moved more often. 

Ms. Drake: You also have the signs on the building.

Mr. Roberts: That is correct.

Chairperson Cardone: There’s a large percent, 145% over on the allowable signage.

Mr. Roberts: A…I’m not sure how you a…we came up with the number of square foot that I’m allowed. I don’t know the….I can’t figure out the calculation for that.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Mattina will help you with that. 

Mr. Mattina: Basically you’re allowed signage of half the square footage of your road frontage.

Mr. Roberts: I have a…three-hundred and eighty-four a…feet of road frontage and that would allow me a…you know, more than the signage I have. 

Mr. Maher: Three-eighty four or two-eighty four?

Mr. Mattina: It’s two-eighty four. 

Mr. Roberts: Its three-eighty four there’s a…

Mr. Mattina: I have a survey that shows two-eighty four.

Mr. Hughes: What are your calculations, Joe?

Mr. Mattina: Basically he is allowed a hundred and forty-two square feet. I have two pending applications for the Roberts’ sign that’s installed on the building and the Nella sign already installed on the building which when you subtract them two applications only leaves forty-nine square feet remaining of allowable square footage. The free-standing sign is a hundred and twenty and that would put him seventy-one square feet over, with the Roberts’ sign, the Nella’s sign and the free-standing sign.

Mr. Hughes: Are any of the ones on the building now that are being removed?  

Mr. Mattina: Well the Roberts’ one will fit square footage wise and the Nella’s on the left side of the building will fit in square footage wise without variances.

Mr. Hughes: But when you go to the standing sign…

Mr. Mattina: It’s when you go to the standing sign and then all the other trucks, banners and that’s where the issue arises.

Mr. Hughes: So just the free-standing sign…

Ms. Gennarelli: Okay, with the air conditioner on we won’t be able to hear at all unless you get close.

Mr. Hughes: With the free-standing sign you’re seventy-nine over and then the trucks and all the rest of the stuff?

Mr. Mattina: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Mr. Mattina: These figures only cover the Roberts’ sign, the Nella’s sign and the free-standing sign. All the other signage is not included in these calculations because it changes, as you said before, daily.   

Mr. Maher: I understand.

Mr. McKelvey: Well when he bought the building and the free-standing sign would be up would have been alright.

Mr. Mattina: No because I have pictures of when the variance was granted in ’87 and that’s not exactly the sign that he has there. 

Mr. McKelvey: Okay.

Mr. Mattina: He has a little but he was granted a variance in ’87 for a 5 x 5. Chiccone (Capiccioni) Realtors or something…

Mr. Maher: It was the old photo place too, wasn’t it?

Mr. Hughes: It was.

Mr. Mattina: Yeah, that’s the little signage underneath it. The main sign was 5 x 5…

Mr. Roberts: Can I see that, sir? If you don’t mind?

Mr. Mattina: Sure.

Mr. Maher: Just to clarify, Joe, you said you got a hundred…two-hundred and eighty-four foot frontage, you got a hundred and forty-two square foot of signage allowed? Correct? A hundred and forty-two will roll?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Maher: Okay.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Maher: So the sign, the pole…oh, the sign on the front of the building…

Mr. Mattina: The Roberts sign.

Mr. Maher: Correct.

Mr. Mattina: Yes, I have an application for that. 

Mr. Maher: Okay, well…just…

Ms. Gennarelli: Mike, can you pull that closer?

Mr. Maher: A…brainwaves…

Ms. Gennarelli: Because of the air…yeah.

Mr. Maher: I’m just trying to clarify because obviously what’s on the a…sheet you gave us and what’s on the…I’m trying to clarify because if you’re allowed one forty-two total, I understand that there may be pending applications but just to clarify what we have overall whether existing, permitted or not a…that’s actually secured, the pole sign, the a… and that stuff on building itself that’s not going anywhere. So if you have the front sign which is equal to what?  On the building itself is…bear with me…

Mr. Mattina: The building sign Roberts’ Roofing on the front is eighty-four square feet. 

Mr. Hughes: Eighty-four square feet.

Mr. Maher: So eighty-four square feet for the Roberts on the front and then we’ve got this on the end of the building…

Mr. Mattina: That’s Nella’s.

Mr. Maher: Which is…a wall sign…

Mr. Mattina: 6 x 36 so that’s nine square feet.

Mr. Maher: So you’ve got nine there, okay you got ninety-three and then we’ve got the…the pole sign…

Mr. Mattina: The pole sign would be a hundred and twenty square feet.

Mr. Hughes: Inaudible

Mr. Maher: Two sided correct? 

Mr. Mattina: Correct.  

Mr. Maher: So we’ve got one twenty there so now we’re up to two-hundred and seven with that one…so we’ve got that one…that one…that one…that one and then the phone side on the…south side of the building. Is that where it is? You’ve got an additional thirteen and a half, thirteen and a half feet there?

Mr. Mattina: We didn’t address them because we only addressed what the applications were submitted for Roberts’, Nella’s and the free-standing.  

Mr. Hughes: So it’s at 209…

Mr. Maher: Okay.

Mr. Hughes: …three of those?

Mr. Maher: 207.

Mr. Hughes: 207? 

Mr. Maher: So one forty-two is allowed so sixty-eight…so, got seventy-five square feet give or take, seventy-one or whatever it is. 

Mr. Roberts: I’d be a…willing to take down the big sign on the front of the building that’s a…seems to be the bulk of the signage.

Mr. Maher: That actually would reduce it below the requirement. So if you took the eighty-four feet off you end up actually having nine-foot, six-foot leeway there. You’d be under actually. Under what’s on the Permit and what is discussed.

Mr. Mattina: Right, application wise.

Mr. Maher: Nothing about the other things that are hanging around.

Mr. Mattina: Correct.

Mr. Manley: The one question I have is you’re willing to remove the one sign so that you can include the other signs basically get those taken care of?

Mr. Roberts: That’s correct. 

Mr. Manley: Mr. Mattina mentioned that there were a number of signs that weren’t addressed in the application what were your plans to do with those that weren’t addressed? 

Mr. Roberts: You know, I a…was under the impression that the sign for the phone number on the window was a…that we did file an application for that. If I didn’t I apologize. That is about a…twelve inches high by about a…and I’m guessing ten feet.

Mr. Maher: It is labeled here as thirteen and a half square feet total.

Mr. Manley: Well you may have enough square footage once you remove that…

Mr. Roberts:  To keep that, yes. 

Mr. Manley: …to keep that.

Mr. Hughes: I noticed some things that looked like sandwich boards up against the…

Mr. Roberts: Those are yard signs and they can be moved and removed if that suits…

Mr. Hughes: If you got rid of all of that and you took the big sign off the front and went with the free-standing in the front you’d be under and that part of it could be addressed alright. The numbers work out there Mike?

Mr. Maher: I’m working on it.

Mr. Hughes: He’s our human calculator here.

Chairperson Cardone: But those other signs are not allowed.

Mr. Hughes: Well that’s what I’m saying to the applicant…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …that they would have to be removed as part of this.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: The truck…the truck would have to be removed too. That’s a big sign.

Right Joe?

Mr. Mattina: Yes that is signage. 

Mr. Maher: Well in essence by keeping the window sign and the pole number sign by keeping the Nella’s and the Roberts’ sign in the front of the building, the pole sign itself and the Nella’s wall sign you end up with one thirty-two and a half (142 ½) so you’ve basically got nine, eight and a half, nine and a half to spare, square foot of signage. That’s with removing the large wall sign in the front there so you still meet the…you’re within the one forty-two that you’re allowed based on the frontage. 

Chairperson Cardone: Are you talking about removing it or decreasing the size of it?

Mr. Roberts: The large sign I can remove that a…permanently. It served its purpose. It’s no longer needed. Everybody knows we’re there. 

Chairperson Cardone: Then what is the point of all these other signs?

Mr. Roberts: Just a reminder. Don’t want people to forget about us. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any comments from the public?

Mr. Manley: Joe, if a vehicle is moved behind a residence where it can’t be seen from the roadway not considered a sign then? 

Mr. Mattina: On a residence?

Mr. Manley: Well a…behind the office building, if they park it in the back where it’s not visible from the roadway are they going to consider that…is that going to be an issue? 

Mr. Mattina: That gets into a whole different chapter of parking commercial vehicles a…it gets into screening, it gets to carports, it gets into other issues to just put it in the backyard? No that would not be acceptable.   

Mr. Maher: In an IB zone?

Mr. Mattina: Correct.   

Ms. Drake: Joe for vehicles that have stuff right on the side of the door of the vehicles, is that considered signage or is the fact that he’s got the roofing and siding signs on the back part of the truck considered the sign?

Mr. Mattina: Displayed advertisement is an advertisement whether it’s just the name, phone number, artwork.  

Ms. Drake: So anybody that has the name of their business on their truck and they park it in their driveway that’s signage?

Mr. Mattina: Well you can’t park a commercial vehicle in your driveway technically.

Mr. Donovan: Well I guess, I guess the question would be this, I think the question would be this or a question would be this, I have my office Dave’s Law Firm and my car has Dave’s Law Firm. I come in the morning, I park Dave’s Law Firm, I go to court, I go to meetings, I park, go home is that a sign? As distinct from my other car which I put on…on the lawn and I corner it so everyone can see it and I never move it. I don’t know if I know the answer to that question Joe. I don’t mean to put you on the spot.

Mr. Maher: Apparently you weren’t at the Public Hearing for the Home Occupations.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Mattina: The Town Board is already looking at the point right now with lettering of vehicles. The Town Board is working on the definitions, is…they are trying to alter the definitions.

Mr. McKelvey: If they’re going to…they’re going…

Chairperson Cardone: This is…this is obviously the sign though it says Sale and it says a…Boutique with an arrow pointing toward the Boutique. You know, we’re not talking about just lettering on the side of the vehicle. No…

Ms. Drake: What I was getting at…   

Chairperson Cardone: …that’s definitely a sign. 

Ms. Drake: Right. Right but I was…

Mr. Roberts: They are signs.

Ms. Drake: …making the…those signs came off that truck and he parked that truck in the back or just park that truck with the lettering on the actual side of the door, is there a distinction between that as being a sign?

Mr. McKelvey: That’s what the Town is working on.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: What’s the length of the foot of the truck that you could park a commercial, twenty-one or twenty-five feet? They have a length of a commercial vehicle that’s the cut off.

Mr. Mattina: Yeah, right now we’re at twenty-five feet in one Section, it also just talks commercial in another section so there’s conflicting…

Mr. Maher: But you…yeah, you can’t live on twenty-five…

Mr. Hughes: So it’s twenty-five feet?

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Maher: You can’t live on twenty-five feet in an IB Zone though.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Hughes: No, I was just trying to figure a way.

Mr. Maher: Well let me ask you I guess I have a question here. As much as I…I…I’m not from…not in favor of the myriad of trucks out there. By the same token though you have a Verizon next door, if you’ve got twenty-five trucks parked there with Verizon on the side of it…

Mr. McKelvey: Plus cars.

Mr. Maher: …so I mean, you know, again I’m not in favor of all the trucks sitting there but by the same token though you have a next door neighbor that’s, you know, fifty feet away. You’ve got twenty-five trucks parked there with advertising per se on the side of them…what’s the difference? 

Mr. Mattina: Nobody filed a complaint against Verizon.

Mr. Hughes: Is that what happened here? 

Chairperson Cardone: And I think it’s…I think it’s also the fact that it’s not just the lettering on the truck that’s the problem…

Mr. Maher: Right, I…I…I don’t disagree there…

Chairperson Cardone: …Yeah…

Mr. Maher: …I just, in general though…

Chairperson Cardone: …right. 

Mr. Maher: …you know, while I’m not in favor of…of the…the arrows and the pointing signs there but with the same token though if Roberts is on the side or on the side of the stake body and it’s just sitting there it’s no different than Verizon sitting there or up on 17K all the truck companies with NEMF on the side of it or NFI or all the NFI trucks on Orr Avenue. There’s really no difference in my opinion. Other than it being visible, it’s right in front of you versus out of site.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Ms. Drake: Or the Home Depot trucks parked in the Home Depot parking lot.

Mr. Maher: Exactly. There’s…there’s…

Mr. McKelvey: Verizon also throws stuff up on the front of their building sometimes. 

Mr. Maher: Which I’m sure they don’t get Permits for.

Mr. Manley: Well I think that’s part of the a…part of the conflict that we’re having is that we understand that there is a need for some…something of that degree because obviously that’s part of business and commerce and…but at the same time, you know, somebody doesn’t want eight trucks parked in front of their house, you…you know, so there’s got to be some sort of balance and that’s why I was asking about well if the trucks were maybe parked in the back of the…the office building in the evening or you know, where it won’t detract from the…from the parking lot.

Mr. Roberts: Yeah, it may be considered it an office but it’s our place of business and that’s…

Mr. McKelvey: That’s what I was going to ask him…

Mr. Roberts: …you know, we a…

Mr. McKelvey: …if he runs his business from there too.

Mr. Roberts: We pay, you know, and…and I don’t want to throw numbers around, we pay fourteen thousand dollars a year in property taxes to stay there in that little corner of 300 and…and near 52 and it’s a lot of money and a...you know and it…it’s a, you know we need to…we need to advertise it to get our name out and people to see us. It’s the nature of the beast with this economy we have to do what we have to do and it…it…putting it up a few extra banners and putting signs on the truck so I can help my wife out, I mean, it’s…you know, it’s…the way it is. I mean I apologize for any inconvenience for this. You know, we’re just trying to survive.

Mr. Donovan: Well let’s kind of circle back to where we are because if the eighty-four square foot sign will be removed…

Mr. Roberts: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …then there is not an application before this Board anymore. There might be…

Mr. Maher: (Inaudible) variance taken.

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct. There may be an enforcement issue, there may be a Permit required a…for other signs if it’s determined that the truck sits on the front lawn, it doesn’t move, that that may be a sign that may need a Permit a…but right now what’s before the Board as I understand it is under a hundred and forty-two square feet. Which…which would not require a variance.

Mr. Roberts: Which I could meet tomorrow or the next day. Give us till Monday and it will be down I can assure the Board that.

Mr. Donovan: Then, maybe I…if you want to do this you can adjourn this Hearing to next month and if in fact that…that’s accomplished then the application could be withdrawn. 

Mr. Roberts: I appreciate it. 

Chairperson Cardone: But you do understand that Code Compliance will be looking at these other additional signs that should not be there.

Mr. Mattina: As far as the additional signage there is a legal, it is in the court system with the signs so after tonight’s meeting decisions things will be addressed in the court system. 

Mr. Hughes: So do we have to generate a letter, to what was resolved here tonight, for the court?

Mr. Mattina: No, I’ll pass it along and we’ll take it to the court ourselves. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to adjourn this meeting until next month?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion.

Ms. Drake: I’ll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Roberts: Thank you all.

Ms. Gennarelli: September 27th, this is held open.






(Time Noted – 8:01 PM)


-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012    (Resumption for decision: 9:47 PM) 



NELLA’S NEST NORTH CORP. 

1430 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(60-3-24) I / B ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the maximum allowed total signage, no structure shall be located within 80 feet of the center line of Union Avenue and signs shall not be located closer than 15 feet from the center line to keep a Prior Built free-standing sign.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Nella’s Nest North Corp., 1430 Route 300, seeking area variances for the maximum allowed total signage and no structure shall be located within 80 feet of the center line of Union Avenue and signs shall not be located closer than 15 feet from the center line to keep a Prior Built free-standing sign. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Ms. Drake: I thought we kept this Public Hearing open.

Chairperson Cardone: On that one, okay yes, I did note that. That’s we hold that open pending the removal of the other sign. Okay.
PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



MICHAEL MAHER



JAMES MANLEY

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



JOSEPH MATTINA, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 9:47 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 8:01 PM) 



MARK T. & KATHLEEN A. JUDSON
64 NEW ROAD, NBGH







(39-1-16.24) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity (front yard setback) to build a pool deck (two front yards).   

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Mark and Kathleen Judson.                 

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out eighteen registered letters, eighteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: If you would state your name for the record and your request.

Mr. Judson: My name is Mark Judson. My request is to increase the degree of non-conformity of my non-conforming above ground pool by placing a deck on one side of it. The pool is non-conforming because I’m considered to have two back…I mean two front yards.

Chairperson Cardone: Two front yards. And you were before this Board in November 2010…


Mr. Judson: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: …for the pool. I have a report from the County which is Local Determination. Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: Actually it’s hard to see the pool from either road.

Mr. Judson: Exactly, it’s absurd. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from the Board? 

Mr. Maher: Yeah, just one question. Why is it non-conforming? 

Mr. Judson: Fostertown Road…

Chairperson Cardone: Fostertown.

Mr. Judson: …runs behind my backyard.

Mr. Maher: Yeah, I understand that but I’m…

Mr. Hughes: It’s a longer distance.

Mr. Mattina: Right, two front yards. They came two months (years) ago for a pool in a front yard.

Mr. Maher: Right.

Mr. Mattina: That was non-conforming, now they’re adding on to that pool that received the variance previously for being in a front yard. 

Mr. Hughes: So it’s the two front yard thing one more time?

Mr. Mattina: Correct, yes. 

Mr. Maher: But the deck is in the backyard though?

Mr. Judson: Yeah.

Mr. Mattina: No, the deck is in a front yard.

Mr. Maher: A deck is allowed in a front yard.

Mr. Hughes: It depends on how you look at it.

Mr. Mattina: But the pool is non-conforming and they are expanding the pool which received a variance which says, once again, you must build…

Chairperson Cardone: It’s a pool deck.

Mr. Maher: I understand that, I understand.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Maher: I’m…here I am playing devil’s advocate because I…I got a homeowner spending money here. A…

Mr. Donovan: Well, you know what Mike maybe you want to…I mean this is now a continuing theme, right?

Mr. Maher: Well no, no.

Mr. Donovan: I think…I think you want to bring up to the Board at some time for the Board’s consideration the whole…we have, this Board has developed a…a policy if you will, we’ve been pretty consistent with it where if we are going to increase the degree of non-conformity and that’s by increasing the mass we’ll look at the…at the application with the deck which basically is…I’ll call it a fill-in deck, we’re not encroaching any further into a side yard but we’re increasing the mass of the non-conformity. This Board has interpreted that in the past and Code Compliance has followed along with that that the increase in the degree of the non-conformity by increasing the mass that’s a non-conformity requires a variance. And I think, I don’t mean to speak for you but you brought it up last month and you’re…I think you have a question as to whether or not we should rethink that if that’s a…?

Mr. Maher: Well, I…I…I guess my question is, the pool is not allowed but the deck, in my understanding, doesn’t have any part of that. Now, I mean, because I…I can guarantee it’s not connected to the pool because obviously they’re moved separately so they’re not connected. They may be very close but that’s my…I…I…I’m just looking at it now I…I’m just not sure because it’s in a backyard and meets the setback requirements, you can put a deck in the front yard. It’s on the opposite side of the pool, guaranteed it won’t be fully connected to it, I’m just…back to the same old thing, homeowner spending money that I don’t think they should spend.

Mr. Mattina: Right, well the way I view it since the pool was granted a variance, any alterations to that pool is violating the variance that was already given. So you’re adding a deck on a pool that received a variance as a pool period.

Chairperson Cardone: According to the drawing it is connected.

Mr. Maher: Well…

Chairperson Cardone: It…I know...

Mr. Maher: …it may look like it but it never will be connected…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Mattina: Not physically.

Mr. Maher: …it will never be connected to it. Okay, you answered my question. 

Mr. McKelvey: It’s the old two front yards.

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public?  

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Judson: Thank you.






(Time Noted – 8:05 PM)


-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012    (Resumption for decision: 9:48 PM) 



MARK T. & KATHLEEN A. JUDSON
64 NEW ROAD, NBGH







(39-1-16.24) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity (front yard setback) to build a pool deck (two front yards).   

Chairperson Cardone: The next application Mark T. and Kathleen Judson, 64 New Road, seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity to build a pool deck and this had two front yards. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: We approved the pool with the two front yards and this is just adding on that’s all.

Chairperson Cardone: And it can’t be seen from either road.

Mr. McKelvey: No. I’ll make a motion we approve.  

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.
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ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 8:05 PM) 



GARY & BARBARA CURTIS

572 FOSTERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(17-2-4) A / R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the maximum allowed square footage of accessory buildings, the storage of more than (4) four vehicles and the maximum allowed height to build an accessory building.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Gary & Barbara Curtis.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twenty-three registered letters, nineteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair, as I disclosed earlier I would recuse myself on this particular applicant. I don’t want to have any appearance of a conflict.

Chairperson Cardone: For the record state your name and your request.

Mr. Curtis: Gary Curtis and I’m requesting to put up a post and beam barn on my property on Fostertown Road.  

Chairperson Cardone: And the report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination.

Mr. Curtis: I have approximately twelve point two acres where I am and a…there’s a lot of other pole barns around and buildings. I have some pictures of around that here on Fostertown Road also that kind of conform to what I want to do and a…I don’t know if you want to…I have the addresses here too. 

Chairperson Cardone: I really have a question about exactly as you’re coming up in to your driveway there’s a structure in front of you, there’s a…off to the left hand side there’s a small a…residence I guess, there were a lot of cars and trucks. I know I had a great deal of difficulty turning around to…to get out of there. Plus I have to also mention that there was a dog that was loose and there is a Town Law regarding animals and I had to get back into my car because the dog was a…obviously a guard dog that came out you know, and we do go to look at different properties around Town and I never expect to be greeted by a loose dog.

Mr. Curtis: When was this? (To Ms. Curtis) Did you see them? 

Ms. Curtis: When was that? Today?

Chairperson Cardone: No this was a…I don’t know the day, one day last week.

Mr. Curtis: Because we actually came back from vacation, we had our dog with us.

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you get a little closer to that (mic) please?

Mr. Curtis: We were on vacation, we just came back last night and we had our dog with us.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, this was a black dog.

Ms. Curtis: No we don’t…

Mr. & Ms. Curtis: We don’t have a black dog. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a neighbor that has the black dog?

Ms. Curtis: I don’t know.   

Mr. Curtis: We don’t know.

Mr. Hughes: Because I didn’t see the dog but I thought I heard a bear. This was something big. 

Mr. Curtis: And our dog is like a sheep dog, it’s a herder dog.   

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, there’s a dog loose on your property.

Ms. Curtis: Plus…plus ours is a greyish color dog.

Mr. Curtis: Light grey.

Ms. Curtis: And he’s not like big like a bear at all.

Chairperson Cardone: Okay, also I was trying to determine exactly where this barn was going. And I also saw a…a large structure with a tarp over it.

Mr. Curtis: Oh that was, yeah, that was a one of those instant shelters that we had there in the front.

Mr. Maher: One or two?

Mr. Curtis: The one in the front is collapsed that collapsed from the snow we had from the year so we’re going to be taking that down but…

Mr. Maher: What about the other? The other large…?

Mr. Curtis: That has…that was up too, I put that up a year and a half ago, about a year ago. This is why I want to do a post and beam barn basically and get these other things down so I can put up one nice structure so I can put…I have classic cars and I don’t like to leave them outside if I don’t have to so I put that instant shelter up so I can put it underneath it.

Mr. Maher: What about the other vehicles that are on site now?

Mr. Curtis: Well that’s what I want to house in this pole barn, this post and beam barn.

Ms. Drake: How many vehicles will you be putting in this barn?

Mr. Curtis: Everyone that’s on the property.

Mr. Donovan: How many is that?

Mr. Manley: How many?

Mr. Curtis: A…six. 

Chairperson Cardone: And what about the other…there were motors and a…I guess car parts, different...?

Mr. Curtis: Well that’s…

Chairperson Cardone: …different things?

Mr. Curtis: …the classic cars that I have there. And the rest are all insured and licensed, all the rest of them. 

Ms. Drake: So it would be… dealing with all those car parts, will they also be going in the barn?

Mr. Curtis: Yes. Or just get thrown out, you know, if they don’t.

Mr. Hughes: So this diagram here highlighted the barn it gives dimensions to the next property here but it doesn’t show me what’s down here.

Mr. Curtis: There’s about two hundred and something feet on the other side. It’s closer actually to my neighbor on that side, which also has a barn too. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, we’ve been out there, we go to both sides of the walls there to see what was going on. See…

Mr. Curtis: It’s about a thousand feet off the road so couldn’t…you’re never ever going to see this barn a…

Mr. Maher: What’s in the…the two-story dwelling behind the pine when you go in and to the right there’s a two-story house there is that occupied currently, the white house there?

Mr. Curtis: That’s my house. 

Mr. Maher: Okay. Then what’s to the left of that?  

Mr. Curtis: A…another residence, it’s 574.

Mr. Maher: And then over by the green shed that you erected last year, there’s another residence over there?

Mr. Curtis: Yes. 

Mr. Maher: Is that occupied?

Mr. Curtis: That’s the 574, yeah.    

Mr. Maher: Well no, I mean there’s a two-story…two-story house, what on here says it converted block garage where the white car was parked today…?

Mr. Curtis: Yes, that’s…that’s a…a… 

Mr. Maher: …this morning?

Mr. Curtis: …a…I think it’s like a two-car garage.

Mr. Maher: No one lives in there?

Mr. Curtis: No.

Ms. Curtis: Oh, no. 

Mr. Curtis: No.

Mr. Maher: So you have two residences on that same piece of property there?

Mr. Curtis: Yes, well it’s…they’re separate parcels. Years ago it was zoned R-2 Agricultural my property and I guess back then they had another building there and…

Mr. Maher: Well on the survey map you submitted it shows both those dwellings on one parcel. Is that not accurate? 

Mr. Hughes: Do you want to come up and look and see what we have?

Mr. Curtis: No, I don’t know what’s going on with that. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you want to take a look at this and maybe enlighten us? Because it doesn’t add up what you’re saying. 

Ms. Gennarelli: You can take that right off.

Mr. Curtis approached the Board

Mr. Hughes: So that other house you’re talking about is on Flaggers?

Mr. Curtis: No, the other house is…where’s the barn? Right here.

Mr. Hughes: So that’s up against that property line but it’s another living dwelling with someone living there?

Mr. Curtis: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Joe, where you aware of that…that there are two dwellings on the property? 

Mr. Mattina: Yes, it really didn’t come in to affect my from my point of view because when he gets deeds and it’s done way back, you know, that’s one can of worms I really don’t want to get into.

Mr. Hughes: Alright, thanks for answering because that was confusing.

Chairperson Cardone: Alright, I didn’t get 574 is not your property you’re saying?

Mr. Curtis: Yes it is. Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: It is your property?

Mr. Curtis: Yes, we own it. We own 572 and 574.

Mr. Donovan: But they’re on the same lot?

Mr. Curtis: Correct, yes, on the same lot, twelve point two acres.

Mr. McKelvey: You’re also asking to exceed the height.

Mr. Curtis: Yes. I have a motor home there that’s pretty tall so I wanted to get that into the building too. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do you run a business from there?

Mr. Curtis: I own a business yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And you run the business from that location?

Mr. Curtis: I…I own a business yes I live there and I…have vehicles that I pull up, I have a pickup truck and a small dump truck.

Mr. Maher: How many cars are in the shed that you currently have?

Mr. Curtis: Two.

Mr. Maher: What is…what it’s quite large for just two cars isn’t it? 

Mr. Curtis: It’s not really that large it’s twenty…twenty by twenty-six I think it is…like that. It just fits in two cars actually.

Ms. Drake: When you were telling me that you were going to have six cars did that include the two that are in the other garage?

Mr. Curtis: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Is this your neighbor’s barn?

Mr. Curtis: No, down the street.

Mr. Hughes: Down the hill from you?

Mr. Curtis: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: But I’m saying in that same area on Fostertown Road?

Mr. Curtis: (hmm hm)

Mr. Hughes: And then the pictures that you have shown that have something comparative in size. This is the youngest one and that’s eighty years old. This one’s a hundred and fifty or so. This one is Mr. Tompkins’ that’s a hundred and twenty-five. And that’s the Grange that was built in 1912.  

Mr. Curtis: (hmm hm)

Mr. Hughes: All pre-existing, non-conforming. We’re not talking apples and oranges here now; we’re talking grapes and watermelons. This is…these buildings are ancient. Your percentages and the numbers that are written on your charts if you’ll bear with me a moment are exceedingly substantial over the top of, the height you’re allowed fifteen feet you’re looking for forty. That’s a hundred and sixty seven if I’m figuring it from where I think it’s supposed to be. You’re allowed to have a total of four cars on the property and without counting the dwelling that Mr. Maher was referring to, you are proposing thirteen cars which is two hundred and twenty-five percent over and your existing say eight hundred and thirty-two square feet and you’re proposing twenty-seven fifty-two looking for an excess of seventeen hundred and fifty-two square feet which is a hundred and seventy-five over. Counsel could you read what it says about substantial and those other factors and…?

Mr. Donovan: Well I just want to make clear that I understand the application that’s…well relative to the number of cars, your application doesn’t say how many cars you want. 

Mr. Curtis: Well…

Mr. Donovan: You said six tonight and we have Code Compliance is indicated that I guess it could house thirteen. How many cars are you requesting? 

Mr. Curtis: I…I want to build something basically to house enough cars to get all mine off my property into this dwelling.

Mr. Donovan: And that wasn’t my question.

Mr. Curtis: I…I…

Mr. Donovan: You’re allowed to have four right, you’re going to ask me for more than four, the Board needs to know how many cars you are asking to store in this barn.

Mr. Curtis: I…well I’m building it for nine so that’s what I want, nine…nine cars.

Mr. Donovan: Nine?

Mr. Curtis: Counting maybe my zero turn tractor that I have to cut my lawn with and you know things like that.

Mr. McKelvey: Well you’re way over with the cars.

Mr. Hughes: You’re way over with everything.

Chairperson Cardone: Everything.

Mr. McKelvey: With everything, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: But is your business selling and repairing cars, is that what…

Mr. Curtis: No, no.

Mr. Hughes: …you’re moving for?

Mr. Curtis: No, I just like to go to car shows and that’s my thing. 

Mr. Hughes: Counsel.

Mr. Curtis: Okay, I’m a thousand feet off the road no one can see this.

Chairperson Cardone: What is the business that a…?

Mr. Curtis: I’m a roofer.

Chairperson Cardone: Roofer.

Mr. Curtis: Just like the previous guy you just listened too, for thirty years almost.

Mr. McKelvey: And you’re running the business from the property?

Mr. Curtis: Yes I do, for the last twenty-five, thirty years. 

Mr. McKelvey: You know what I’m thinking Joe.

Mr. Hughes: When it rains it pours. Counsel, could you go through the rulings when it says substantial, describe for the benefit of the public and the applicant what that all involves?

Mr. Donovan: As the Board knows there’s five factors to consider in issuing an area variance relative to the substantial nature of the variance we have to determine whether or not the variance is substantial relative to the Code provisions and I think Ron, you know, just pretty basically the Board has been through it already that in terms of a percentage  basis the a…based upon our prior decisions we’ve indicated pretty much anything over fifteen percent, exceeding fifteen percent of the requirement is a…is a substantial variance. So I think that the chart that Code Compliance has provided indicates that the variance relative to accessory square feet of accessory structures is a hundred and seventy-five percent over and the height is a hundred and sixty-seven percent over. In terms of the vehicle storage we’ve had six or nine or thirteen but nine obviously is more than double what’s allowed by the Code. So all the variances requested are substantial variances and that’s a factor for the Board to consider in your deliberations.

Mr. Hughes: And if you’ll allow me we’ll try some Chinese arithmetic in this if you will? Your existing eight hundred and thirty-two square feet that’s on the chart here does that include that two-car garage that you speak about with the garage with two cars in it? Joe?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, that eight thirty-two is the pre-existing garage which is also calculated into the storage vehicles. It’s all lumped into one number as total accessory structures. 

Mr. Hughes: Okay and is the other dwelling considered in that square foot footprint?

Mr. Mattina: No.

Mr. Hughes: Is it represented in any way?

Mr. Mattina: No, the dwelling is a non-issue because it’s not an accessory building, there’s no storage there.

Mr. Hughes: Okay. And I’m guessing that’s been there a long time as well.

Mr. Mattina: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: And your house is pretty old too.

Mr. Curtis: Yes, we’ve been there almost thirty years.

Mr. Hughes: Alright so if you took the cars out that 2-story garage are they going to go into the back with all the rest of the cars you want to get? I’m looking for the whole package here. 

Mr. Curtis: No, I mean they could stay there.

Mr. Hughes: Well, that’s not going to benefit you.

Mr. Curtis: Oh, yeah sure, yes.

Mr. Hughes: Is that garage a good garage or is…?

Mr. Curtis: Yes it is a good garage.

Mr. Hughes: Okay so you wouldn’t consider taking it down because if you would then you’d take eight thirty-two and you change all those numbers and percentages but you’re still way off.

Mr. Maher: Let…let me clarify one thing. So Joe, the block garage when you first pull into the driveway, there’s that block garage in front of you…

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Maher: …that’s the eight thirty-two or is that a portion of the eight thirty-two?

Mr. Mattina: No that is the eight thirty-two.

Mr. Maher: Now the green shed up or whatever you want to call it on the left hand side…?

Mr. Mattina: That’s not calculated in to…

Mr. Maher: That’s not even in here yet?   

Mr. Mattina: That’s not even in here because it doesn’t meet Building Code issues; it’s going to have to be removed.   

Mr. Maher: Okay, so…so the eight thirty-two is only the block garage existing not the…?

Mr. Mattina: Correct.

Mr. Maher: Pop up shed or pop up whatever you want to call it there. So that would have to come down to begin with just too…and you’re still significantly over.  

Mr. Mattina: Right, the green…the green canvass pop up was never taken into consideration in these figures.

Mr. Hughes: Is there two of those? Two temporary sheds I see there or…?

Mr. Curtis: Well one is collapsed that’s just ready to…we’re going to take that away just that a…

Chairperson Cardone: There are two.

Mr. Hughes: Okay, so now then let me ask you this, you’ve got a forty foot height that includes six foot cupola?

Mr. Curtis: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: What do you have twenty foot ceilings in this place?

Mr. Curtis: No, it’s just a tall bottom so I can get vehicles that are tall in there.

Mr. Hughes: Okay so then what’s the bottom floor height?

Mr. Curtis: A…a…eleven feet, ten feet plus a…

Mr. Hughes: What’s the second floor height?

Mr. Curtis: Well that probably goes up probably thirteen to fifteen feet.

Mr. Hughes: Okay and then are you twelve on twelve or…?

Mr. Curtis: Yeah, it’s like a…it’s like twelve on twelve.  

Mr. Hughes: So your big offense is the triangle of the roof? 

Mr. Curtis: Right, most of the room.

Mr. Hughes: Is your intention to be in tune with the rest of the neighborhood and the old barns or to get something that you might be able to get an approval on? Because with eleven feet on the bottom floor and eleven feet on the second floor you’re seven feet over your max and then you’re going to put a twelve that’s got to give you another sixteen feet. How wide is that thing, forty?

Mr. Curtis: It’s forty by forty-eight.

Mr. Hughes: That’s where your problem is. What are you going to put up in the triangle? Nothing right?

Mr. Curtis: Nothing.

Mr. Hughes: So why kill yourself with an empty space?

Mr. Curtis: Well because this was a kit so I basically picked a kit out…

Mr. Hughes: Okay.

Mr. Curtis: …something I could build and…

Mr. Hughes: I’m not trying to break your chops here. 

Mr. Curtis: I know.

Mr. Hughes: I’m looking for a way that you might be able to pull this and reel it in and pull it together. You’re never going to get that with a twelve twelve and forty by forty eight. What does that come out to?

Mr. Maher: What’s that? I’m sorry. 

Mr. Hughes: The apex of the twelve by twelve with a forty by forty-eight.

Mr. Maher: Well you got twenty…you get… (Inaudible)…

Mr. Hughes: Twenty-four in the middle.

Mr. Maher: Well you got twenty foot…twenty foot in the center… (Inaudible) long?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. 

Mr. Maher: So its twenty foot in the center times twelve, you got twenty feet from the top of the wall up.

Mr. Hughes: So you’ve got twenty feet on top of your twenty-two feet and you’re cupola that’s why…

Mr. Maher: Well no (Inaudible) …this is about he’s got small (Inaudible) walls here so you’re looking what thirteen, fourteen, fifteen plus a…? Yeah, he’s got small (Inaudible) walls on the a…on the walk there so. Yeah, you’re in the area of…of thirty-five, forty feet, yeah; actually it was forty feet that was the required.

Mr. Curtis: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Maher: Yeah, forty feet, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: So if you shrunk everything down and put a flat roof pitched in the back then you don’t have an extra thirteen feet over the top.

Mr. Curtis: It’s true but then I wouldn’t have the barn I want to make. It’s…I want something that’s nice, grander…

Mr. Hughes: I want to be thin and good looking to but you know…

Mr. Donovan: You got it…you got it half right.

Mr. Curtis: The thing is…I mean we have…it’s an area where if you look at four sides you’re looking at nothing but woods.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, no I…I understand that…

Mr. Curtis: No one can see.

Mr. Hughes: I’m in the same position you’re in. I live in an ancient place and everything was there a couple of hundred years before I was.

Mr. Curtis: And we’re…and I’m really do to for cause we want to do a farming in the future cause we’re going for it right now a district one that we’re in and we already talked Cornell co-op but I didn’t want to really go through as all farm because then you know, we can’t store anything in it, you know, that we want to put in it so at least I want to try to do it this way before I go that way or else they’re gonna tell me…

Mr. Hughes: Has this been a changed from an Ag district to an R-2?  

Mr. Curtis: No this is…it used to be an R-2 agricultural now they changed it to an R-1 agricultural. We have a very little spot in the front of our property that’s an R-1 (R / R). That’s not even our house it’s actually before our house. As you come up to our house up our driveway it turns to agricultural.

Mr. Hughes: Because of where they arbitrarily put the line?

Mr. Curtis: The line.

Mr. Hughes: Alright, so maybe we’re wasting a whole lot of time here. Joe? If we throw this back into that this is in an agricultural district then all of this stuff doesn’t have the same bearing on it.

Mr. Mattina: Well not if he’s a not a legal farm. Just because you’re in an AR zone it doesn’t mean that you…

Mr. Hughes: Well I a…maybe he’ll have a beard like mine before it is but he might be able to get it if he follows that course of action.

Mr. Mattina: If he becomes a farm.

Mr. Curtis: Which I would have, I was going that way but I didn’t have the time and I already had submitted this. I already had put a down payment on this barn…

Mr. Hughes: Oh…

Mr. Curtis: …and a lot of things so a lot of things just went too fast so…we were trying to do it this way before I go the agricultural way and cause I had people coming over to check the…the soil and all that and it just…there’s not enough time involved. So we went this way first thinking that we had twelve acres, we have some place that’s hidden where no one is going to see it, it’s beautiful, it’s probably the…not being nicest one on the block. You know that kind of thing and we didn’t think anybody would complain about it cause it’s…it’s just… 

Ms. Curtis: And you’re not going to be able to see it from the road.

Mr. Curtis: …it’s an agricultural area. We…we’re building a pole barn basically. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, well…

Mr. Curtis:  A post and beam barn and what we would need is just a…variances from the Board saying that alright it is a little large but it’s…we have twelve acres, it doesn’t really fill up the property at all and a…we’re just looking for something that we can have and store some of the stuff in, make our property nice again. We live in a eight hundred ninety square cape cod for the last thirty years and we’re kind of crumped in that and…you know…

Mr. Maher: Joe.

Mr. Curtis: …and it just…

Mr. Maher: Sorry. Joe what is the requirement for the cars on site? Are they required to be registered or what’s the status there?

Mr. Mattina: Yeah, they have to be roadworthy and registered. You’re allowed one that is in disrepair as long as it’s not in a front yard it’s not, you know, visible from the road. Once you get into a second vehicle it becomes a junkyard. 

Mr. Maher: So all the vehicles on your property now are roadworthy and registered?

Mr. Curtis: All but the motor home right now.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to give an opportunity to anyone from the public who would like to speak, if you would raise your hand and then come up to the microphone. I’ll start with I think I saw your hand first, the lady in green. Yes. Just state your name for the record. 

Ms. Mozayeny: Gloria Mozayeny, good evening Board. My husband and I, Kew Mozayeny we’ve been neighbors to the Curtis’s for about twenty-five years now. A…when we moved there a…we didn’t exactly realize how many vehicles that he had on the property. We understood that he was grandfathered in with a roofing business which, you know, the law is the law a…we also were in construction but we had commercial property and functioned out of commercial property but we…we found that to be not much of a problem until other things arose. I know in fact that they did have two dogs for the longest time because there was an issue with the dogs barking, the dogs running, running freely. I know one of them was black so I don’t know where we are with the…with the black dog that’s a mystery to me, unless he is dead now. The other thing is…

Chairperson Cardone: Well he was very much alive the other day. 

Ms. Mozayeny: Yeah, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: A week ago Monday there was something rustling.

Ms. Mozayeny: Very much alive, we…we heard them for like two, three, four summers, in fact, we tried to give them a friendly phone call, could you do something about that because the dogs don’t sound happy they are barking all day long. They either need something, from my perspective, or they’re not safe. Nobody called me back, nobody picks up the phone, you know, we tried to be neighborly but we didn’t have any communication from there. In the past few years, we have put our home on the market and a…with the onset of Google Earth and internet people have the ability to check the neighborhood from the comfort of their own home. They can Google houses around; they can look at the neighborhood to see what it’s like. I did not realize there was that much stuff around the house until the realtor said, you know you have an issue with two driveways away it may be scaring off some of your buyers because there’s a lot of junk around the house. So until I Googled it I had no idea all these years that there was that much stuff around the house. They don’t look like registered cars to my husband and I. It looks like that there is a lot of stuff around the house and we don’t know if this building that he wants to put is going facilitate any kind of cleanup of anything because we have never seen any action of mowing, weed whacking, fixing of broken trees; we’ve had storms come through here we never see anything nor do other neighbors that are here. They haven’t seen any effort made and we have put a lot of effort into our property to leave it a better place than what we found it and it just kills us because we pay high taxes. We had to function out of a commercial property and pay high taxes. Thanks to the economy we had to close it four and a half years ago so we’re kind of in the soup like everybody else. But it just, as far as neighbors go I don’t think we’re all on the same page and I think everybody has been really tolerant and we just don’t feel if he puts this building up is it going to get any cleaner? Is it going to be anymore neighborly? Is it going to be any more approachable when you drive your car up there? Because I’ve heard the story from so many people. And the realtors have told us flat out that property is always going to be an issue when you sell your home. So what do I do someday when I want to retire and sell my home? I have to give it away because somebody can basically put all kinds of stuff around their house and never mow, never weed whack, never show any effort and there doesn’t seem to be anybody watching it until somebody complains. So when the letter came that he said he wanted to put a building up I said well maybe now is our opportunity to open up some discussion to say, gee what’s happening here? Because the other neighbors’ houses don’t look like this, you know, people mow, people weed whack, people clean up and I know it’s the country. I grew up in Pine Bush. I know very well. I grew next to a big dairy farm but there should be some basic things that people have to do to keep up a property. And I’m all for, you know storage and all that stuff whatever is allowed. You know, we’re not against that but we just need a little bit more a…reassurance that this building is going to make some of these things happen. That’s all.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Okay, the gentleman…

Mr. Mozayeny: My name is Kew Mozayeny, I think my wife Gloria was very eloquent so I’m not going to take too much of your time. I just wanted to thank you for your diligence, all of you. I’ve seen all the questions you’ve been asking about commercial property and signage and the square foot of sign and so on and so forth and I know you guys, all of you, try so hard to try to help the Town of Newburgh. Now this property is a residential property. The fact that there’s a roofing business being conducted out of it is fine. We have never objected throughout the years. We wish them prosperity if there is no Ordinances against this at all in the Town? Fine. But there’s got to be a line drawn somewhere. We rely on you all to police this for us because we know, I’m a civil engineer, I’m a contractor, we can push that line for zoning and planning as far as we want but there’s got to be a line somewhere. Now this building with two structures and a house, two homes there, two other buildings there, the fact that it was built eighty years ago or a hundred years ago, a hundred and fifty years ago is irrelevant. If you want to have a car show going on by all means go rent a property some place that’s commercial and put your cars there. We all live there all of us. We all take care of our property and again we want to do the neighborly thing. Ms. Cardone mentioned the dogs. Four different occasions I personally have retrieved the dog from Fostertown Road. We have called Mary from the Town of Newburgh Animal Shelter so many times. After she retired we called her sister that’s maintaining…you can get the record. They said file a complaint. We never did that because we did not want to do the un-neighborly thing. But somewhere down the line you as the Planning (Zoning) Board are responsible to take care of us. Otherwise forty feet in height, sixty feet in height because we got fourteen acres we can put a two thousand foot building there and put a cupola on top of it…I mean, before long everything is going to be pushed to the point where our property is going to be worthless. You mention yourself Ms. Cardone, when you went to the site…it looks like Deliverance over there. Okay? And I’m not going to criticize anybody, the fact that where I come from wherever somebody else comes from but there has got to be a little effort put in. We help our neighbors all the time, all the time. Whether they need backhoe done, cleaning done, whatever, we’re proud of our neighborhood. And I know you’re proud too. I ask you please, this is a residential building; okay this is a residential area okay? I ask you please to police it for us. Thank you.   

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have anyone else who would like to comment? 

Mr. Hughes: I…I would like to…correct something.

Chairperson Cardone: If I could first read this so I don’t forget to read it. I have a letter here from Kenneth and Lynn Sickinger. We want to deny the variances requested by Gary Curtis for exceeding the maximum allowed square footage of accessory buildings, the storage of more than four vehicles and the maximum allowed height to build an accessory building. And that’s signed Kenneth Sickinger and Lynn Sickinger.

Mr. Hughes: I just wanted to make a correction for the record. Glancing through this quickly I misspoke earlier and I said that they are asking for nine cars, they’re asking for thirteen with a variance of nine so I want that corrected on the record if you would please. 

Chairperson Cardone: Okay, do we have anything else from the Board?  Anything else from the public? Yes?

Ms. Mozayeny: The other point that I wanted to raise was that we all have wells in that area and we understand that he has been functioning a business out of there, the roofing business. We’ve often wondered when we smell things, different things burning in the backyard what chemicals may be in and around the yard, what’s leaking into the ground we don’t know, the same with the cars around the property. The Beenzie situation, there were a lot of cars over there and that property basically is still contaminated as far we’re concerned. We don’t know what is going on a lot time with all this stuff around the house and having such close proximity to having our wells that’s also been a concern to us for our health. So…

Chairperson Cardone: We have Code Compliance here this evening and I’m sure he’s taking note of everything we’re saying. Do we have anything else from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Recused 




Grace Cardone: Yes






(Time Noted – 8:37 PM)


------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012    (Resumption for decision:   PM) 



GARY & BARBARA CURTIS

572 FOSTERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(17-2-4) A / R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the maximum allowed square footage of accessory buildings, the storage of more than (4) four vehicles and the maximum allowed height to build an accessory building.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Gary & Barbara Curtis at 572 Fostertown Road seeking area variances for the maximum allowed square footage of accessory buildings, the storage of more than (4) four vehicles and the maximum allowed height to build an accessory building. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I feel the application is excessive and the fact that they don’t want to entertain reducing the excessiveness of the application storing nine (9) cars, forty foot high, I make a motion to deny the application. 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Recused




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion to deny is carried.

PRESENT ARE: 



GRACE CARDONE



JOHN MC KELVEY



BRENDA DRAKE



RONALD HUGHES



MICHAEL MAHER



JAMES MANLEY

ALSO PRESENT:



DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.



BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY



JOSEPH MATTINA, CODE COMPLIANCE







(Time Noted – 9:50 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012             (Time Noted – 8:38 PM) 



GE COMMERCIAL FINANCE BUSINESS   14 CROSSROADS COURT, NBGH


    PROPERTY CORPORATION                     (95-1-74) I / B ZONE

  (ORANGE COUNTY CHOPPERS CONSTRUCTION, LLC) 

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the maximum allowed total signage to keep two prior built signs and to erect a new sign. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant GE Commercial Finance Business Property Corporation.               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out seven registered letters, they received five responses. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: And if you would identify yourself for the record, please use the microphone and it does come off the stand. 

Mr. Daly: My name is Robert Daly and I’m a planner representing GE Commercial Credit and Orange County Choppers…

Ms. Gennarelli: You have to get closer Rob, thank you.

Mr. Daly: Closer?

Ms. Gennarelli: That’s good.

Mr. Daly: Do you want me to go again?

Ms. Gennarelli: No.

Mr. Daly: Okay, I’m still Robert Daly and I’m happy to be here and I thank the Board for the opportunity. We’re here this evening concerning the property along Route 17K on Crossroads Court, 14 Crossroads Court a…where the Orange County Choppers’ building is located and the request to the Building Department for a Building Permit raised this issue. The Building Permit was denied on 5-23-12 based upon signage exceeding the permitted maximum sign sizes. So we’re here to request a variance under Section 185-14-C-1-(c) of the Ordinance which the total allowed signage is one half of the total street frontage. The street frontage of this particular property is one hundred and fifty one point five eight feet. One of the items I wanted to draw the Board’s attention and I’ll do it just by way of pointing. This is Route 17K, up would be north, down would be south. This is Crossroads Court coming in off of Route 17K and Crossroads Court provides the access to the Orange County Choppers’ building. The distance from the road to the site is four hundred plus feet. When we originally prepared a site plan for this in 2006 and I gave you a narrative explaining this a…the glass on the building on what is the north and the east side of the building, north side being the side that faces 17K, the east side being what we would consider the front of the building with the plaza here and the New York State Thruway out here, Hilton Gardens would be right in here. And…I provided photographs in your packet showing you what these exposures were. This is the east exposure with plaza in the front and this is the north exposure on to the 17K side. And what was done in this original application was to have this glass, this is an entire glass wall be etched. A…due to timing constraints in the construction schedule it was not etched and what was put on was a…a clear vinyl with an appearance of etching which is this opaque here that you see as the logo of Orange County Choppers. So that is the sign that’s being referred to in this application. There are two of them; there is one on the north side, one on the east side. The signs are identical in size and composition. They were placed on there a… in...as I said that was 2006. This sign here is the existing sign that conformed to the a…70 sq. ft. I guess is the square footage of this sign. And this one said Orange County Choppers’ Motorcycles, the only other sign on the building and here it is blown up. And what we had is submitted in the Building Permit application is that this sign would be replaced with the Orange Choppers’ Café sign which that is the work that’s under a…in progress on the property at this point in time. So that’s how we ended up here before the Board with this particular sign. We did review alternatives, you know, a box sign, a lighted sign. Anybody that’s been out to the site recognizes that it is down from elevation-wise from Route 17K. Being in the Interchange Business area we don’t have any frontage on Route 17K so the only place we could put a sign would be on, you know, a box sign or a lighted sign and from the design point of view, myself as a planner, we felt it would be more attractive to provide something that both fit into this a…the interchange area and was a little different in terms of what you would be looking at. Obviously from the point of identity, the logo was a, you know, a very valuable tool and so we provided that sign. I know when Joe had sent us stuff on this with the denial you’ll see that the square footages were quite different and I’m sure that’s because Joe was measuring the panels. I had the engineers go out with a Hilti and measure the sign itself otherwise you’re looking through glass. The only thing you can really see is the lettering itself which is opaque. Does that make sense to you? I don’t know if a…but that’s…I think that’s where the difference comes from in that so a combination of factors here. You have a large building distant from the roadway a…which was designed a…to be a different kind of a building and I think it’s a very nice asset to the Town and what we provided was signage that etching of the glass if you would. I know the sign Ordinance, having looked at it, doesn’t really address this issue when things are closer or farther from the road. Having no road frontage on 17K is a…you know, a significant problem here in terms of trying to address how you’ve maintained that visibility and public identity a, you know we felt, you know, a combination of aesthetics a…the soft grey on a blue background and basically the color of that glass is whatever the reflection is of the day’s sky. You can see there are some blue tones in here and down below it was a little darker. It’s not backlit or anything of that nature. It’s a static sign from that point of view so you know; trying to provide a combination of diversity and a…yet a…some aesthetics this is what we’ve provided to the Board. And we didn’t have a problem with it until Joe raised it. We’ve never had any complaints about it a…I think that was not the issue, you know, we had spoken with Martin Milano next door at the a…at the Hilton Garden Inn. Martin didn’t have any problem with it, you know. So we viewed, you know from our point of view did it have an effect on the neighborhood? A…nothing that we could attribute to being a negative impact. Were there other alternatives? Yes, we’ve looked at them. None we felt were as aesthetically pleasing. A…was it a substantial change in terms of your Ordinance? Yes, it…it is but given the size of the building and the distance from the road we felt these mitigating factors a...should be a…considered. In terms of an environmental impact we view that this being an interchange business location a…you know the expectation is that cars traveling on the a…on the State Highway at 55 mph, you know, certainly should be able to see what they’re looking at and we considered the positive impact of terms of…of, you know identity and location. Has this been self-created? Certainly it has but we didn’t recognize it at the time as a sign and a…you know the etching. The glass was something that we had originally, as I said provided in 2006 site plan application to the Board and I’d be happy to put up here a…a, I think I gave you one in your packet a sizing of the sign so you can see how we arrived at the square footage a…but a immaterial but I just would point one a…one thing that we did have, this sign…we call it the existing sign, Joe called it a new sign and I guess, you know, whatever the semantics of that one are.  We’re not going to change this. This is going to be the same box. It’s going to be a, you know, just a different face on it, same continuing use of it and that is 70 sq. ft. And Paul is within I think the 75.79 sq. ft. maximum so I think that sign would just continue on but really what we’re more talking about are the...a…the OCC logo signs on the glass. 

Mr. Hughes: Now that’s a total of 780?

Mr. Daly: Yes, I believe it was 309…

Mr. Donovan: I think according to the…it’s 610 right?

Mr. Mattina: Those are a…(inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: You mean the overage is 610?  

Mr. Donovan: No, I think…I think we need to revisit or talk again about what we talked about a couple of months ago. Joe, you probably have all the glass?

Mr. Mattina: No this time I went by definition, signage area on a sign consists solely of letters, design figures, the area to be considered is the smallest basic geometric shape which would be a triangle. So it would be fifteen by thirty-eight. The letters would fit within the triangle. 

Mr. Donovan: Alright you get 570 a sign then as opposed to 305? 

Mr. Mattina: Based on the definition, yes. 

Mr. Donovan: Okay.

Mr. Hughes: So you whittled it down with a triangulation of the side area?

Mr. Daly: Well I would say that we’re significantly…some…something is wrong there. I mean we…here…here is the actual size of the sign from the top of it to the bottom of it. Fifteen okay? Here is the low…the low point to the high point and here is the width from the edge of this point over here to this point over there. Why you would use a triangle to a…evaluate that I’m not really sure a…in terms of figuring square footage…

Mr. Donovan: Okay.

Mr. Daly: …if it’s a basically rectangular sign.

Chairperson Cardone: Joe, I have a question. What was the square footage of the sign as it went through the Planning Board process?  

Mr. Mattina: There was no sign given because it wouldn’t have fit. They didn’t have the square footage to allow this for the Planning Board stage. This was supposed to be done at a separate time later date, variances, you know, obtained later on.       

Chairperson Cardone: Okay. 

Mr. Hughes: I know you came in a little bit later than most of the other people; we’ve all been out to all these sites to see what’s going on there. I just wanted you to be informed about that. Joe was the reason for your trying to triangulate that was to lessen the effect of the square footage? 

Mr. Mattina: No I just triangulated it based on the definition…

Mr. Hughes: By the definition only.

Mr. Mattina: …of what we went through previously…

Mr. Maher: A rectangle or triangle? Rectangle correct?

Mr. Mattina: Rectangle correct.

Mr. Maher: A triangle would help your case…a rectangle…

Mr. Hughes: Well that’s what I’m looking at that’s why I thought it was triangulated. I…I don’t know. Do you want to take your ruler out again?

Ms. Drake: So Joe, what did you…did you come up with the 15 x 38 also?

Mr. Mattina: Correct, it’s 570.

Mr. Donovan: But they came up with 305. So how did you get 305 Rob?

Mr. Hughes: Something doesn’t add up. 

Mr. Mattina: Right, they’re stuck to all this…all this dead area. They’re only going by the etched glass itself.

Mr. Daly: See what we…what we’ve…in doing this, this is…this is the area of the sign we took in here. Not…not…not the part of it where you can see through the window. I mean it doesn’t make any sense to calculate that. I mean what would be the purpose of it? It’s a clear window.

Mr. Maher: Well because it’s based on the…


Mr. Donovan: To comply with our definition.   

Mr. Maher: Thank you. 

Mr. Daly: But obviously if it’s clear, I think what your intent was if I’m reading the Code correctly you’re looking at it as a something that is opaque that you’re looking at a flat sign and here is a case where you’re looking through glass. This has no impact, if we went and…and cut around this exact shape what is…what is the area of the sign? If you take away this opaque portion of it there is nothing there.

Mr. Donovan: That’s a good argument but that’s not what our Code says. The Code says when such sign consists of letters, designs or figures engraved, painted or projected or in any manner affixed on a wall the total area of such sign shall be considered to be that area of the smallest basic geometric shape rectangle, circle or triangle which encompasses all of the letters or symbols in the sign. So what obviously what Mr. Mattina did is drew a rectangle around it and did his calculation because that’s what the definition says.

Mr. Daly: Okay but when you said a shape when you were discussing this, you know, there are many shapes other than squares and rectangles and triangles. 

Mr. Mattina: Not in Newburgh. 

Mr. Hughes: Sir, if I could add a little more humor to this? If you took a line and passed it through those three dots underneath the motor cycle, if you will, and made a triangle let’s go to a trapezoid if you will…?

Chairperson Cardone: Even a triangle would be less than the rectangle. 

Mr. Hughes: …and knock off the corners. Well even a trapezoid would be less too but what are you knocking out in the corners?  

Mr. Daly: Well irregardless I think the issue is one of that it is a sign by definition which would be non-conforming from the code and the extent of the non-conformity is, you know the visible part of the sign that we see there so what we’re here and asking for a…this Board to deliberate on and to a…provide us relief on is the continuation of the use of this logo, you know, and we’ve read the sign Ordinance and looked at it and recognized, I mean, with the existing sign Ordinance this sign here is…the one that we showed you as the existing sign...

Mr. Manley: Did the…

Mr. Daly: …would be the only one permitted. And you would not be able to see that sign from Route 17K. It would be just impossible to see it. There is no…you’re over four hundred feet away traveling at fifty-five miles an hour, you know, a…

Mr. Hughes: Its forty there. You’ll get a ticket.

Chairperson Cardone: Forty, yes.

Mr. Daly: I mean just to stop and look I thought, you know, I understand what the sign Ordinance says and perhaps, you know, it’s something the Town would choose to revisit, you know and in…in reformulating the sign Ordinance at such time as they come back to that but in the interim, you know, we recognize that the a…the proper course is to come in and ask for a…the Zoning Board of Appeals, yourselves to give us relief in this matter.

Mr. McKelvey: Is this signage where the café entrance is going to be?   

Mr. Daly: That’s correct, right there.  

Mr. Manley: When you were before the Planning Board…

Mr. Daly: Yes?

Mr. Manley: …and you were going through your architectural reviews this was never brought up, is that correct?

Mr. Daly: No this…

Mr. Manley: Signage, was signage brought up?

Mr. Daly: It was and it was discussed and we talked about an alternative at that point in time of developing a common signage for all of the lots which were on Crossroads Court. A…Martin Milano owns one, the Holiday Inn…a…or the Hilton Gardens Inn is one of them, G & M Orange on the front lot is a…in front of this, this area here was another one and Orange County Choppers would have been the last but…that sign was never pursued. It wasn’t ours to pursue it because it was on somebody else’s property and so that’s why that going nowhere at that point in time we didn’t feel that had a…a…the, you know a way of pursuing that to a successful conclusion. What we did do is we did present a…the issue of etched glass and that was discussed but we…we could not do the glass etching a…based…it just took too long to get it from the factory etched to be installed.

Ms. Drake: Did the site plan that was approved show the etching on the glass?


Mr. Daly: I don’t believe so, no. Joe, would…?

Mr. Mattina: No.  

Mr. Manley: Would…Joe, would this be something that would end up having to go back to the Planning Board based on the fact that they’ve changed…they’ve altered the plans of…if it was never on the original plans and whether or not this Board approved or didn’t approve. If we approved it is the next step having to go back to the Planning Board for the…?

Mr. Mattina: The Planning Board wouldn’t address signage if you…if this Board does. They did talk about it. They did mention any other signage would require variances so they did discuss it but not in detail, not in specifics but going back to the site plan, no it would not. It would not need to go back.

Mr. Hughes: Joe were there any considerations taking on the property line behind the building, added it into this formula? The gentleman here is telling us there’s a hundred and fifty some feet out in front but you got the whole thing on Orr Avenue behind the building and I don’t hear any figures.

Mr. Mattina: Right, Orr Avenue can’t be used because it’s a different section, block and lot. Its might…it’s the same ownership but it’s not the same section, block and lot that the business is located on so the figures cannot be used.

Mr. Hughes: Okay, I just wanted to make sure that you weren’t overlooking something. 

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Ms. Drake: If it was the same lot then those figures could be used?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, you would be able to use half of that road frontage also, if the lots were combined…

Mr. Hughes: So the parking lot is up against Orr Avenue?

Mr. Mattina: The parking lot…

Mr. Hughes: The back of the building is up against Orr Avenue and they also own to the south between the transfer station and the building itself and that line goes down to the Thruway. There’s no road there.

Mr. Mattina: Yeah, I’m not sure what they own but the parking lot is on a separate section, block and lot. 

Mr. Hughes: Okay, then I understand that why it wasn’t included.

Mr. Mattina: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Alright, thank you, I was just looking at another angle here.

Mr. Daly: And just by way of note, those are in separate ownership too because the owner of the property that we’re looking at is GE Commercial Credit with Orange County Choppers as the lessor...the a…

Mr. Hughes: The tenant.

Mr. Daly: …the tenant and so each of them would be separate. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering all those questions I wasn’t quite sure about that. Joe, thank you.  

Ms. Drake: If they’re separate tenants is there an option to…for Orange County Choppers to purchase the parking lot, to be able to own that and combine that into one lot?

Mr. Daly: No, no it would be…Orange County Choppers being a tenant of the building wouldn’t, you know, be in a position…

Ms. Drake: They are the tenant not the…okay…

Mr. Daly: They are the tenant, that’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: And those parking spaces were assigned to that building for that approval of that project?

Mr. Daly: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: There were no reciprocals?

Mr. Daly: No.

Mr. Hughes: Okay.

Chairperson Cardone: Were there any comments or questions from the public? 

Mr. Manley: I have a concern and that is ten years from now if the Choppers moves out of there and the building becomes vacant and another tenant comes in, we don’t know what type of tenant that’s going to be, we’ve already approved you know, a huge amount. They could turn around and not use the etched glass and decide they want to put a huge sign up. 

Mr. Daly: Well as I understand it and I…I get the gist of your concern, recognize that any other tenant that came in to use that building would have a site plan obligation a…in terms of appearing before the Board to a…concerning their use, the Planning Board. And I’m sure that issue would be one that is raised. Obviously they wouldn’t want to keep the logo up there but they might have other intentions and that change would then bring it back to the Board and I’m sure back in to this Board and then at that point in time perhaps the sign Ordinance will have changed. Does that make sense? Do you understand what I’m saying because it…that’s the…if, you know; whatever you’re use is you’re going to have to go into the Planning Board with your intended use. 

Mr. Manley: But our approval follows the building so if we’re granting, you know, six hundred square feet let’s say of signage that’s following that…that’s following that building. So if you have somebody…

Mr. Hughes: The property in its entirety.

Mr. Manley: Right and it’s a permanent. It’s not something we can revisit that you know that the next tenant has up to six hundred square feet to utilize and perhaps it may be a…it may be something that you don’t want to approve. So that, I mean, that’s the concern that I have is we’re already approving something or potentially being asked to approve something that’s what fourteen hundred percent…is that what it was? Close to fourteen hundred percent over what normally would be approved in most cases, I mean we have people come in and you know, they’re two hundred square feet over and we’re…we’re looking at that.  I mean we just had an applicant this evening that we really looked at very closely the amount of square feet that we allow and here, you know, the applicant in this case is looking for fourteen hundred percent over what, you know; we’re…what we allow. I…I have an issue with that.  

Chairperson Cardone: But I think also Jim, you have to look at the size of the building and also the lack of road frontage that they have, that they can use. And looking at the size of the building, you know, a building of that size would require a larger sign than a building that’s a quarter of that size.

Mr. Daly: I…you know, I mean we can all see that at times, you know, existing Ordinances don’t satisfy the circumstances and that’s why we come back and revisit it, that’s why we have a Zoning Board of Appeals.

Mr. Donovan: If I can, I indicated before that pretty much historically in our decisions anything over twenty percent, fifteen or twenty percent is a substantial variance. The only exception to that is…is in the sign variance category because we have recognized that the measurement of half the frontage is sometimes inadequate especially if you have minimal frontage, the lot opens up and you have a very large building and it doesn’t serve much of a functional purpose to have a small sign on that building. So we have approved variance applications having a high percentage of overage on the theory that the overall impact of granting the variance is not substantial. The mathematical calculation may be, the overall impact is not. I do want to return to one thing that Mr. Manley brought up because I do think we need to have some closure on this. In the site plan elements it does require, Section 185-57, the locations, dimensions, materials, plans and elevations of any proposed outdoor sign. So I…I don’t know, Joe you’ve indicated you don’t look at this as an amendment to the site plan but I don’t know whether the Planning Board would or would not…I don’t know how you got site plan approval without showing a sign and why that wouldn’t be an amendment to the site plan. 

Mr. Maher: When was the building completed?

Mr. Daly: 2007.

Mr. Maher: When was the applique applied to the windows?

Mr. Daly: 2007.

Mr. Hughes: And you guys were here in 2007 for a…

Chairperson Cardone: Not for signs though. 

Mr. Hughes: No.

Mr. McKelvey: Then, no.

Mr. Daly: That was for a setback issue on a foundation.

Chairperson Cardone: Setback.

Ms. Drake: So, what is that material? Is that something that can be removed from those windows?

Mr. Daly: Yes, it could be.   

Mr. Hughes: That’s a vinyl?

Mr. Daly: It’s a vinyl.

Ms. Drake: Would it be an option, would the applicant consider an option of making it smaller…?

Mr. Daly: No.

Ms. Drake: …or…

Mr. Daly: You know, I think it would be very difficult to remove it at this point in time, you know I guess it could be done…

Ms. Drake: Well it’s not etched in so you don’t have to replace all the glass…

Mr. Daly: Right…right…

Ms. Drake: …it’s a vinyl that you’re taking off. I’m not asking is there any other ways to reduce the significance by either removing one or the other or making some of it smaller. 

Mr. Daly: Well I think at this point we prefer to just have the issue addressed on the signs that are there in place a…I understand what you’re saying. You know, they’re quite costly. This is not an inexpensive a…process.

Ms. Drake: But the risk of maybe not getting a variance, removing them totally and not having them available at all…

Mr. Daly: Yes, I understand what you’re saying.

Ms. Drake: …is an option is a risk you’re taking.

Mr. Daly: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Fourteen hundred percent…over.

Mr. Daly: I just might make note too because I did see that number and I know it’s of concern to this Board a…you know, the Department of State in providing guidelines for this balancing test provides the following quote: the third factor is whether the requested variance is substantial. Substantiality is not a numerical measurement but rather is a measurement of whether the impact of the variance will be substantial on the surrounding community. That’s from our own New York State Department of State…  

Chairperson Cardone: Correct.

Mr. Daly: …that provided the balancing test so I just…I wanted to make sure, you know, because I understand it is substantial and I’m not here to say different but I think when the State a…the New York Department of State is providing this guidance they were…they were taking and making the effort to identify that substantiality is more a concern of the overall environment of the neighborhood than it was on a particular number or a numerical calculation. Thank you.

Mr. Manley: Well the other issue too is, unfortunately you’re in this predicament because somehow, somebody let this slip through the cracks and the applicant didn’t perhaps check to make sure that there wasn’t an issue with the signage before they went ahead and did it. Checking maybe with the Building Department or checking with someone that it was okay to proceed with putting these signs up. So now it’s kind of you’re playing catch up and you’re in a precarious position and it kind of puts the Board in a tough position because they already exist. 

Mr. Hughes: And it seems kind of odd to me and I wasn’t at that meeting, I was in…that’s when I wrecked my knee I was in the hospital, one of the few meetings I’ve missed. It seems odd to me that they were here in that same year that he describes they put the signs up and it was never mentioned or it was never an issue. So and I know there were some things that happened in that same period of time with the parking lot and other stuff. Keeping in mind, I understand what you’re saying about the mechanics of what the State suggests that we use for our guidelines and the balancing act, all of our Board Members regularly go to school and we keep up with all of those elements but one of the things that’s a little bit of a ticklish issue in that area is there a very ancient historic cemetery on the corner and there’s a very ancient historic and water drinking supply to the City of Newburgh’s reservoir which we have reciprocal agreements with, that’s Patton Brook that wiggles its way down thru the property from in and out the houses and goes underneath the road and goes into Lake Washington which is the City of Newburgh’s reservoir and we keep an eye on everything around here. We only have so any resources to deal with. So just so you know; everyone keeps a close eye on that property because of those things. 

Ms. Drake: I have one more question, in the evening or at night is the building lit up so you can see the emblems at all or is it all the lights off and you don’t see anything at night?

Mr. Daly: Well there is security lighting, it’s a lower level of lighting and you know, I’ve driven by it many times at night and when the lower level of lighting is there it’s very…you can’t see it. It’s not…the lighting is not directed as a back light to a…this opaque material or translucent material is really what it is. It…it’s just the general lighting that’s in the space and it…and as the night goes on, of course you know as they close down the lighting level drops and you really can’t see it at all.

Mr. McKelvey: I have to agree with you because I go by there quite a bit. 

Mr. Hughes: It’s pretty dark.

Ms. Drake: Thank you.    

Mr. Hughes: Plus you’re down in that pocket.

Mr. Daly: And we’re down, yes. 

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing further.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board?  Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with Counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight’s applications. I would ask in the interest of time if you would wait out in the hallway and we’ll call you back in.






(Time Noted – 9:12 PM)


ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012    (Resumption for decision: 9:50 PM) 



GE COMMERCIAL FINANCE BUSINESS   14 CROSSROADS COURT, NBGH


    PROPERTY CORPORATION                     (95-1-74) I / B ZONE

  (ORANGE COUNTY CHOPPERS CONSTRUCTION, LLC) 

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the maximum allowed total signage to keep two prior built signs and to erect a new sign. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of GE Commercial Finance Business Property Corporation at 14 Crossroads Court seeking an area variance for the maximum allowed total signage to keep two prior built signs and to erect a new sign. This is an Unlisted Action under SEQRA.  Do we have a motion for a Negative Declaration?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion for a Negative Dec.

Chairperson Cardone: Second?

Ms. Drake: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.




John McKelvey: Yes




Brenda Drake: Yes




Ronald Hughes: Yes




Michael Maher: Yes




James Manley: Yes




Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: All things considered I…I…I feel that whatever the Board decides to do it should ultimately go back to the Planning Board but we don’t have a decision on that yet and I’m thinking that potentially it may something that the Planning Board may have to revisit. If they’re okay with the way it is but I think that…

Mr. Donovan: Well if I could make a suggestion, if you’re inclined to approve it you could impose a condition that it return to the Planning Board if deemed to be necessary. 

Mr. Hughes: But if we take that course of action we’re almost setting a precedent that’s fourteen hundred percent over the top and I realize that the numbers of the mathematics aren’t so much a concern here but the setting and the avenues of access and ingress and egress to the project, are we trying to let the guys on the Thruway read a sign or are we trying to let guys close by? The sign on the front of the building where the courtyard is is no less or no more than a hundred feet from the front door. So to me it’s absurd to have to have that big a sign unless you’re trying to catch the attraction on the Thruway and on the other one its way overboard. I don’t agree that we should rule on this and sent it to the Planning Board. I can’t wrap my head around how it got to this part and they came here in the same year that the gentleman said they put the sign up and it wasn’t addressed. I suggest we send it right back to the Planning Board where it belongs and let them wrestle with it. This would be a precedent beyond description as far as not the numbers mathematically but the proportions and the ratio proportions in that neighborhood. And I don’t feel comfortable ruling on something like that. I think this an entirely either a Town Board or a Planning Board issue.    

Mr. Donovan: Let me ask this question, if we…if you decided to send them to the Planning Board and the Planning Board said, we’re either not going to take action or we want your input on the variance before we do take any action then it’s going to end up back here. So…so if you…it’s my suggestion, it’s only a suggestion, if you feel the variances, they haven’t demonstrated their case to your satisfaction I would suggest you deny the variance rather than send it to the Planning Board. On the other hand if you feel that they met case then…then I would suggest that you grant the variance subject to a provision that it return to the Planning Board if it’s deemed to be necessary by the Building Department and or the Planning Board.  

Chairperson Cardone: Well I don’t agree with…I don’t agree with you Ron a…I think looking at the size of the building, looking at the size of the lot, the neighborhood and the overall effect and I don’t see that looking at it in that perspective I don’t see it as being that significant. That’s just my…my own opinion on it, you know I think that as…as you go there it’s not something that jumps right out at you. It does not look like it is out of place.

Mr. Maher: It does appear to be subtle a…again there’s no bright colors. There’s no lighting. It is very (inaudible) it would be more subtle at nighttime. A…my concern is what I feel is the blatant disregard for the rules when the building was built and the…how it appears to have been done right after the C.O. was issued a…much to my dismay. 

Mr. Manley: And the biggest thing is, I mean we can’t right a wrong now, I mean what’s done is done however the message that perhaps this Board sends is that well, you know, you can just come here and get forgiveness and the Zoning Code doesn’t…doesn’t matter. I mean it just flies in the face of those people that, you know, constantly do the right thing and those that don’t well they get forgiveness and that’s just...that…that’s a tough thing because we have a lot of people in the Town of Newburgh that you know, do do the right thing and a…I just think that a…in this particular case the applicant should have, you know, presented their case when they were getting their site plan approval. If they weren’t sure what type of signage then they should have said to the Planning Board that they would come back and amend their site plan once they had an opportunity to design their sign but to just go ahead and do it and then years later come back to the Town and…and ask for a variance it’s just…those are the two issues that I have. I mean, the size issue could have been dealt with back in 2007 if they had come before the Board, this Board and presented us with a plan of what they wanted to do…and a…

Mr. Hughes: Well if they had been straight forward with us, they were in here in ’07 when that sign was put up as the gentleman had indicated. Now I don’t know if that’s the right year, it might be off a year one way or the other but whatever there were a series of things that went on with this project it just seemed like they did wanted to. I’m not real happy with that. To me it’s an exorbitant overage and percentage.

Mr. McKelvey: Well I have to agree with Grace, the size building and the distance it’s back from 17K.  

Mr. Hughes: That’s why we have seven people on the Board.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. I agree with what Jim is saying. Certainly, you know people should not disregard the law and just go ahead and do whatever they please and then hope that they can get forgiveness however, we…we’re faced with a situation where this was done a number of years ago and now they’re looking to, I guess, legalize what they did illegally six or seven years ago. And a…

Mr. Maher: But the…

Chairperson Cardone: …and I’m looking at it, you know in view of how it is today, you know and how it is on the property.

Mr. Maher: Right but the reason they’re here is only because of the fact that they’re asking for something else then this came up. Otherwise this would have…they would have not asked for a variance or permission to keep the signs.

Mr. Manley: Now the other thing that you have to battle to is do you really need signs to show that you have a café? We’ll use for example Barnes & Noble; Barnes & Noble just has a Barnes & Noble sign. They have a very small sign in the window, I believe, that says Barnes & Noble Café a…in the window but they don’t have a separate huge sign outside of Barnes & Noble that is advertising their Café. Most people know that most Barnes & Noble have a…a café so the real question is, this particular location Orange County Choppers is a destination place. Most people know when they go to a Cabela’s knows that a Cabela’s has a, you know, a little food court inside of it so I think this is something that do you really advertise the fact that you have a café or is it going to get out to the general public just through their…their website, through their word of mouth that there’s a café here and does it really necessitate or does it need to have that…that additional sign? So, I…I don’t know necessarily if the applicant has really made their case for needing the sign for the café and if that’s the case maybe we can live with the other and you know, they’ll just have to advertise in other ways that they have a café.

Mr. Maher: Or come up with a solution to reduce the square footage of signage as an alternative…

Mr. Manley: Right. 

Mr. Maher: …then install the sign for the Café.

Mr. Manley: Exactly. But instead of coming up with an alternative they’ve come saying, well we want to keep what we have and expand upon that, and that’s where I have a problem.

Chairperson Cardone: Well I don’t think that’s what they were doing though just to correct that. They were taking away the one sign and replacing it with the café sign, that green sign…?

Mr. Manley: Correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: They were replacing that with a sign for the café, the same size.

You know, the real issue here is the logo that’s on the…on the glass.

Mr. Manley: The etching or the…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Manley: …the vinyl…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Manley: …lettering that…

Chairperson Cardone: So, and Jim you’re saying you would not be comfortable with any kind of a grant of the variance that would then refer it to the Planning Board if need be?

Mr. Manley: I would like to see the applicant make a decision of reducing something or not including something. That has to be the applicant’s decision. I don’t want to make that determination and I don’t want to arbitrarily just give them a number of square footage. I want the applicant to be the one to, you know, if the applicant maybe…I mean, does the Board want to consider holding it open until next month? And let them come back with a…maybe a revision to…?

Chairperson Cardone: We…we’ve closed the Public Hearing. We would have to reopen it or are you talking about Reserving Decision? 

Mr. Hughes: Well I never heard any mention of mitigation all during the highlights that were chosen as excerpts from the State Law and it certainly provides that the applicant should mitigate to reduce. Our job here in a review is to make sure that the least amount of whatever so the applicant can enjoy their property and that we serve them with that honor. Alright? So I didn’t notice that the applicant was willing to reduce by mitigation anything.    

Ms. Drake: I specifically asked if the vinyl could come off and would they consider that and the answer was no.

Mr. Hughes: So I mean if I handed the guy a pack of razor blades over here to scrape the vinyl and put a new sign on he’d be much better off getting a smaller sign than a no for an answer I would think but there was no extent that I perceived where mitigation was offered or even considered. So I…the balancing act…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …goes both ways when it comes to the rules you have to adjust and in that balance we’re supposed to weigh and get the reduced whatever we can to make it more compatible. This is way overboard…in that setting or any other and I agree with what my colleagues say that in that setting and its back from the road and all that it’s not so noticeable but what happens when the guy on the other side of the Thruway wants to do the same thing? They’ll be wrapping the room, wrapping around the block trying to get in here. That’s very precedential. And everything that we do in here is precedential to a certain degree. We’re here to give the applicant relief of the law. When you walk in this door here with an application it’s because there’s something illegal already. I don’t really feel comfortable playing into something that’s going to further its illegal situation. 

Mr. Manley: And…and, you know, I’m battling with the…with the inside, that you know, I certainly don’t to deny the applicant and force the applicant to have to reapply with another proposal but you know, unfortunately the…the applicant didn’t offer any suggestions that hey, you know, I’d be willing…we’d be willing to keep this, this is important to us these letters on the front glass are important to us so we would be willing to keep that and forego the Café sign or we would eliminate that Café sign. So unfortunately it doesn’t really give me as a…as a member much to work with. 

Mr. Hughes: So, as I understand it Counsel at this verge…at this juncture we either unanimously have to agree to reopen the Hearing or to hold our decision?

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Daly, could you respond to some of the issues that have been raised? 

Mr. Daly: I did make note here a…you know, I…I thought the issue of a disregard for the rules a…you know, I found it a very interesting comment because this was one, we went through it a...there was a tacit approval from the Town at the time that this was done. Everybody a…you know was there, we saw it, we’ve been through the Town Planning Board process with several changes in both a…the parts and changing the a…paint booth, you know back in for other modifications in the building. This has never come up before, you know, in the interim we have six years go by, five years go by and you know the a…implication that this was, you know, something a blatant disregard for the rules I think is a…not correct and a…you know, you are certainly welcome to address that with the Planning Board but I think you’ll a…you know, I…I a...am very a…I…you know I was involved in…in that process and that was never the intent and a…I…you know I feel just strongly that we…we make that note to the Board. With regard to reducing the sign, there is no way to reduce that sign with…other than take it off and…and get another one. That…I mean, it’s not like you can take it and just cut off a piece of it or I…you know a…you know it’s either you replace it or you live with what you have there. You know, there was a…one of the things I noticed the existing Ordinance doesn’t provide for a distance and a view from a distance where a sign may…may not be appropriate. Changing the Café sign, that seventy square foot, you would never be able to see that sign from anywhere out on 17K. You could not read that sign. I…I hope everybody understands that at four hundred feet the lettering on that sign, seventy square foot, it would be just completely unreadable. So I, you know I…all that sign is doing is directing people into a door as opposed to into the retail area or around to the garage area. That’s the only purpose that that sign is serving and a you know, I think from the a…a…you know, from the point of view of…of what was provided at this point a…yeah, I guess, you know if you needed to say, you know we need to have something so we feel comfortable you know, we’re…certainly the more important thing from our point of view is a the logo lettering a…on the building. You know the box sign is not as important a…you know we’d have to find some other way to direct people or come back with a smaller sign but I don’t know that that’s really what the Board intends that they want. You know I think when I came here a…you know to give you some sense of it a…you know, I…I…I think what was done was done aesthetically and tastefully and it was done a…with an idea to provide a complement to the building. It was not done a you know as an alternative which we couldn’t follow up on. It…what was done was to provide us with a sign on the building because we didn’t have an opportunity or a place for there to be a sign on Route 17K. And even from the distance, scale and size of the building a…you know it does not look inappropriate.  I mean if you…at least to my a…to my judgment and I know a…you know in talking about percents and that and that’s why I…I made a point of…of you know trying to bring to your attention it was the…it was more of the whole of the environment that was being addressed I think is what the intent was and not some percentage of size and change a…outside of the Ordinance, so I…that’s probably the only thing that I can address to it. Just to go back, I think the logo sign is more important to us, you know, I mean if you need to have something that the Board feels that we’re willing to…to meet you halfway on something certainly the Café sign is one that we would a…a…be less interested in pursuing. It’s a much less expensive sign you know, having to reduce those we’d be into forty thousand dollars again for a…you know, to get those cut and get it put up. So thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: I also think if you…if you made them cut them down in size to meet the Code it’s going to be hard to see it, from the road.

Mr. Hughes: Well I’ll quote the applicant if you…if you can reach us somewhere halfway…we’re not asking to wring him out. We’re just…if we can…

Mr. McKelvey: I…I understand what you’re saying.

Mr. Hughes: …impossible to improbable comparable to laughable and ridiculous, where are we going? I mean if they’re willing to meet us halfway then that’s a whole different light on the subject now but up until now there’s been no attempt to mitigate it under any percentage or anything and the sign that he’s talking about eliminating is half the size of that door there. So…

Chairperson Cardone: There are two logos…

Mr. Hughes: …do you have anything further to say about that?

Chairperson Cardone: Ron, there are two logo signs.  

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I’m familiar.

Chairperson Cardone: And a…what you’re suggesting or maybe I’m reading into what you’re suggesting is that perhaps if one of those signs were to go?

Mr. Hughes: As I said earlier, when you come down that driveway and you’re in front of the marque or whatever you want to call it in the…in the circle in front of the Choppers’ building it’s a hundred and fifty feet to the front door from when…from when you’re still in the car. The other one faces 17K. I can understand if you leave that and take the other one off or do something else now we’re a lot closer to where we belong than what we’re talking about now. The other thing that I don’t really want to tell the guy how to do his business or the Choppers and I’m guessing this guy represents the landowner and the tenant isn’t here. What happens when that vacant lot is developed out front and it covers the sign on the north face of the Choppers? Then we’ve got another can of worms.  So, you know maybe I’m looking too far into the future but sooner or later there’s going to be something out there as a tenant I would imagine. See he doesn’t invest that kind of money and not have a…another building put up where they can put it to use, get a lease and some income. So what happens then when that new building is put on that parcel and it covers the whole Choppers’ building? Where are we then?

Mr. Daly: Well I think that’s an issue we’d deal with at the time that it came before the Board and you know obviously it…it wouldn’t…wouldn’t block the view of the building completely because anybody coming from the east going west would still have a visual…

Mr. Hughes: Sure. 

Mr. Daly: …of the building.   

Mr. Hughes: But now if I can make another suggestion? GE owns the shebang? Everybody there is a tenant or does Martin Milano own that on his own separate?   

Mr. Daly: Martin Milano is separate.

Mr. Hughes: Okay. So then of the property that you control which is that whole thing right on up to 17K…

Mr. Daly: No it’s not up to 17K, it’s…it’s just…

Mr. Hughes: You own to the brook and that’s it?

Mr. Daly: Just the…to the south side of the brook.

Mr. Hughes: And so that other parcel out there is not under your control?

Mr. Daly: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, I was under the impression that you own that as well. I was going to suggest…we have like down at Target if you guys will remember the circus that went on there, they had a free-standing sign out on 17K to announce what was in the back. It was on another person’s property. We had to give them a variance to be able to do that and they negotiated a way where they could do that. You can have a sign up on someone else’s property that’s ancillary to your business and maybe there’s something there that you can do. I’m not trying to put you in a cage or anything. I’m trying to find a way out.  This…this is fourteen hundred percent over. It’s substantial under any circumstances. And I agree with what my colleagues say the dimension and the perspective and the distance of the building and all that. It’s not outrageous but it’s not something that I’m comfortable with approving.  

Chairperson Cardone: And you’re saying, when you’re looking at it you’re looking at this sign, in your understanding, this is the one that’s questionable?

Mr. Hughes: Well if you got rid of either one of them you would cut the whole thing in half right away…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: …then we’d have seven hundred percent over which is still very substantial but in that setting I think I would be more a…acceptable to something of that nature than what’s glaring us in the face right here. 

Ms. Drake: Yeah, let them choose which one they want.  

Mr. Maher: I…I mean my suggestion wasn’t even to remove it. There needed to be some type of reduction in the overall, the signage there. A…you know, the fact that you’re…you’re giving me a number of forty thousand dollars for the applique it seems a little high but I’ll take your word for it. But I…I would think that there would be some type of reduction or something that you could give back to eliminate some of the overages there. Obviously, you know, you’re willing to give up the…the Café…is there access to the Café from inside the building?

Mr. Daly: Yes there is.  

Mr. Maher: So I’m assuming they want the person to walk through their showroom first to begin with. Regardless of that, you know, I mean that…that’s a gesture of good will there but I guess the issue is that, my concern is that just to the overall size to come in and…and expect to just continue with really no contingency plan I’m a little surprised by that from coming in the door today. 

Mr. Hughes: Maybe a mitigation of the sign south of the brook on the corner of front part of your property, I don’t know.

Mr. Manley: If the Board Reserved Decision for sixty-two days and allowed the applicant to go back and speak with individuals at his firm and then came back next month and if he offered the Board some other alternatives is that something that we could consider at that point? Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Well you have up to sixty-two days from the close of the Public Hearing to make the decision so you can…you can Reserve Decision and indicate to the applicant that you’d like the overall signage reduced, put him on the agenda next month and he can make the decision if that’s what he wants to do or not. Certainly you can do that.  

Mr. Hughes: We don’t have to wait the full sixty-two, we have up to.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: So if we Reserve Decision or there’s another option that State Law provides for if we’ve closed the Public Hearing we can reopen it if we have a unanimous vote across the Board that there’s further considerations and that’s the only way I know of but if you do that, I think, you have to have a unanimous vote to overturn what was…being that we haven’t made a decision there’s nothing that needs to be overturned, we could reopen the Hearing with a unanimous vote to do so, reserve the decision and give everybody a level playing field so that everybody has a good bite at this thing. I think.

Ms. Drake: How do you let the public know that the Public Hearing has been reopened? Does that have to be advertised…?

Mr. Donovan: It does not. 


Mr. Hughes: It does not.

Ms. Drake: …or new mailings…?

Mr. Donovan: Well, you know what; I’d have to check the statute. I don’t recall off the top of my head.  What’s the…let me just ask you this…what’s the purpose of reopening the Public Hearing?

Mr. Hughes: So that the public, the applicant and ourselves can further discuss in retort to whatever he might bring to us or if someone else has something to say. I don’t know how many people did you have to notify? There’s nothing out there, there’s only ten parcels around the whole thing. 

Mr. Maher: But if we Reserve Decision, we’ve been able to Reserve Decision in the past and the applicant came back with addition information for us, correct?

Chairperson Cardone: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Mr. Maher: There doesn’t need to be further discussion just further information submitted.

Mr. Donovan: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: I was just thinking that…

Mr. Manley: If the applicant wishes to do so. He doesn’t have to.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, it’s a question not a demand I mean I…

Ms. Drake: Alright, we could the Reserve Decision…

Mr. Hughes: I’m trying to balance… 

Ms. Drake: …and if they present…

Mr. Hughes: … the balancing of the balancing act. 

Ms. Drake: …and the present something different to us to look at next month or we can choose to vote on it at that point.

Mr. Maher: Or if in fact you’re so inclined that it…it…if…these logos are, in fact, that expensive and some kind of documentation provided that they are extremely cost prohibitive, you know, any kind of information you…you can or will provide, you know, may help your case. 

Mr. Manley: Would you like a motion to Reserve Decision? 

Mr. Donovan: Well you don’t need to do that because you have sixty-two days. You can make a motion if the Board is so inclined to put this on next month’s agenda under Other Board Business then that would be appropriate.

Mr. Hughes: And at that time, Counsel, if the applicant came back with things that needed to be discussed further and we unanimously voted to reopen the Hearing, would we need a unanimous decision?

Mr. Donovan: Well I still don’t know why you want to do that.

Chairperson Cardone: We could discuss it without reopening the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Okay, then that’s fine. That’s more than satisfactory for me.

Mr. Donovan: I…I would just suggest to be fair that in advance of the meeting you communicate with the Board and indicate we’re willing to do X if you’re willing to do X, or we’re not willing to do…we…or to put it a different way, we stand on our application. Just so the Board knows coming into the meeting what’s before you.

Mr. Hughes: And if there is any additional information, a week ahead of time? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: So that we have a chance…

Chairperson Cardone: A week ahead of time, in writing. 

Mr. Hughes: …to digest it. Ten days ahead of time?     

Ms. Drake: Whatever the normal timeframe.

Mr. Hughes: Betty, do you usually get things ten days ahead of time?

Ms. Gennarelli: Well that’s when everything closes so usually everything is in ten days before.

Mr. Hughes: Okay. Does that sound fair enough to everybody? 

Chairperson Cardone: Sounds good.

Mr. Hughes: The applicant? 

Chairperson Cardone: So we will be Reserving Decision until next month. Is there anything else that anyone would like to bring up to the Board at this point? 

No response.
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ZBA MEETING – AUGUST 23, 2012

END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 10:25 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: Did everyone have a chance to read the minutes from last month? 

Do we have a motion to approve the minutes?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve the minutes from last month.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor?

Aye - All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to close the meeting?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.
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